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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
SOLAR INDUSTRIES INDIA UMITED

Report on the Standalone financial statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Solar Industries India Limited
{“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow
Statement and forthe year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policiesand other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect tothe preparationof these standalone financial statements
to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and the cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our
audit,

4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under including the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

5. We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from

material misstatement,




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Board of Directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements,

7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements,

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, and its profit
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date,

Other Matter

9. The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the

transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these standalone financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the years ended
March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies {Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an
unmodified opinion dated May 16, 2016 and May 25, 2015 respectively. The adjustments to those
financial statements for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition
to Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 7016, issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act [“the Order"), and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give in the “Annexure- B* a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

11. Asrequired by Section 143 (2) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




1.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
farasit appears from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive
income}, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directars asan March 31, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respecttothe adequacy and operating effectiveness ofthe internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure- & to this
report,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at
March 31, 2017 on its financial position in its standalone financial statements,

The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts tor which there
were no material foreseeable losses,

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended
March 31, 2017,

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the standalone financial statemenis
as to holding as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from
November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016, on the basis of information available with the
Company. Based on audit procedures, and relying on management's representation,
we report that disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by
the Company and as produced to us by the Management.

For Gandhi Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 103031W

C.M. Rathi
Partner

Membership No, 39895

Place: Nagpur

Date: May 29, 2017




“Annexure A" referred to in the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the standalone financial
statements of Solar Industries India Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial  reporting  of
Solar Industries India Limited [“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAl} ('the guidance note’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial contiols Lhal were operating elfectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, Including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

2. Dur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing as prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adeguate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ic sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

G A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

a. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:

b. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to  permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

€. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial contral over financial reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8 In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system aver financial reporting and such internal financial controls aver financial reparting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Gandhi Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firmis Registration Number: 102031W

C.M. Rathi
Partner

Membership No. 39895

Place: Nagpur
Date: May 29, 2017




“Annexure B” referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date.

wi.

Re: Solar Industries India Limited (“the Company”)

{a} The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is
a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

(e} According to the information and explanation given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in Property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the

frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification,

The Company has granted unsecured loans to eight bodies corporate covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act').

{a} In respect of the aforesaid loans, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted
are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The borrowers have been regular in the payment of the
interest as stipulated. The terms of arrangements do not stipulate any repayment schedule and the
loans are repayable on demand.

{b) There are no overdue amounts for more than 90 days in respect of the loans granted to the bodies
carporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of the loans and
investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits to which the provisions of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified. Accordingly clause 3 (v}
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the recards
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.




wil,

wiil,

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the recards of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, local
body tax, cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities though there has been slight delay in few cases.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed dues payable in respect
of pravident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty
of encise, value added tax, local body tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Co mpany, the dues
outstanding of income-tax, duty of excise, Sales Tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

| MNameofthe |  Mature of dues Amount Perlod to which the | Forum where dispute is |
statute under dispute amount relates pending
not deposited
[Rupees)
Central Excise | Excise duty { 31,081,954 | 2000 - 2008 CESTAT, Mumbal i
Art, 1944 ‘
["Central Excise | Excise duty 1,806,720 | 2011- 2015 Commissioner  (Appeal), |
Act, 1944 | Magpur
Central Excise | Excise duty 103,508 | 2012 - 2013 ll:mnr;u-ssi:nneli.ﬂ.ppealr.
Act, 1944 Bhubneshwar |
| Central Sales | CST 101,967,858 | 2008 - 2013 Sales Tax Tribunal '
Tax Act, 1956 |
Sales TaxAct | VAT 9,082,964 | 2006-2007, Deputy Commissioner of |
2008 - 2009 Sales Tax , Satna
- - |
Sales Tax Act | CST 1,235,399 | 2006-2007, Deputy Commdssioner of
2008 - 2008 Sales Tax, Satna
| Sales TaxAct | Entry Tax 209,491 | 2006 - 2007 Deputy Commissioner of |
Sales Tax, Satna
Sales Tax Act | Entry Tax T 82,848 | 20032014 Deputy Commissioner of |
Sales Tax , Satna |
Sales TaxAct | VAT 3,635,642 | 2013 - 2016 Deputy Commissioner of
Sales Tax, Jharsugda

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to bank or Government as
at the balance sheet date. The Company did not have any outstanding dues in respect of financial
institutions and debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans for the purposes for which they were
raised, The Company has not raised money by way of Initial Public offer or further public offer.




®i.

xli.

xiii.

Xiv,

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
we report that we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

As per the information provided managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the
Companies Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable
Indian accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
Balance Sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3{xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3{xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Gandhi Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Fir

~
C.N. Rathi

Partner

Membership No. 39895
Place: Nagpur
Date: May 29, 2017

's Registration Number: 103031W




Solar Industries india Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

|Balance Sheet as at Motes( March31,2017 |  March3l 2006 |  Apell1,2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4,038,150,304,39 3.510.662,761.02 2 AT6,400,401.72
Capital work-in-progress 3 159,682,392.41 121,282,488.30 203,444, 896,08
Financial assers
Investrments 4 582,355, 785.00 BOB,005,577.00 592,644,222.00
Loans 5 1.035,331,571.85 492715752847 798, 266,679 89
Other financial assets & 215,481 968,98 157,723,111.53 129,103,570.16
Current tax assets (net) 21,579,828.79 03,245,.283.11 233,579,382.43
Other non-current assets L] 87,209,023.35 119,994,713.38 A1,548.459.18
Total non-current assets | 613980087477 ] 553807106301  4,914996,61166
Current assets
Inventories 10 TTR 294 208 24 ROJ ERO BJE 35 463,045 .015.39
Financial assets
Imvestments 4 42,560,687 86 55,534 97664 2.266,926.98
Trade receivables 7 1,726,245,964.71 1,323,285,776.56 1,437,281, 880.00
Cash and cash eguivalents 8 £1,949.009.57 22,103, 10874 21,203,959.12
Bank balances other than cash and cash 2 15,005,499, 92 41,141,483.26 168, 664,039.50
eouivalents
Loans 5 573,746,631 67 691,635,238 67 297 .980,818.71
Other finantial assets [ 406,411,822 43 416,712,626.00 324 BEZ 48541
Other current assats 9 27727210127 214 857,209 24 194,032,136 54
Total current assets | 4.300,57692567 | 345086424586 | 290915816165
Total assets loMisers0044 | 899733570847 | 782015477331
EQUNTY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Enuity share capital 11 1B0,980,110.00 180,980,110.00 1B80,980,110,00
Other equity 6,405,351, 831.94 5.301.991,212.38 4 B99,510 BTR 45
Total equity | 658633190104 548297132238 |  5,080,499,989.45 |
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabifities
Borrowings 12 803,031,350005 966,673, 759.80 TH3,002,741.00
Deferred tax liabilitles 14 681,198, T85.00 SB4,797,923.00 408,514,983 65
Total non-current liablities | 148423013505 155147168280 . 119151772465
Current Habilities
Finantial Rahilities
Borrowings 13 989,999.004,17 567.882,915.33 01,065 666.03
Trade payables 15 403.861.572. 76 T78,789,153.99 B05. 776 EEE.04
Other financial liabilities 16 TH5, 748,883 46 391,439,444.13 292,673,897.97
Other current liabilities 17 181,296,263.06 225,381,089 84 152,620,837.27
Total current Nabifities L 2370905723451 196349270329 |  1,552,137,060.21 |
Total liabilities | 385513585650 | 351496438600 |  2,743,654,784.86 |
Total equity aod liabilities 1044146790048 | 899703570847 |  7,824.154.773.31
Summary of significant accounting policles 22

Thiz accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For Gandhi Rathi & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Solar lndustries India
. |
e E,M
v .
SN Manich Nuwal
Chair Panaging Director &
Exe rector CED
F . o
Ul'.‘»u"fﬁ\ @ J_U-'J“L
Pasari Milesh Panpaliva

Compaly Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: Nagpur
\Date: May 29, 2017




Solar Industries india Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

(all amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Notes Year ended Year ended
March3l. 2007 | March 31,2006

Continuing aperations

Revenue from operations 18 12,532,174,499.50 11,254,027.813.42

Other income 19 133,839,545.49 138,153,115.20

Total income | 12,666,014,048.99 | 11,302,180,978.62

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 20 6,785,727,314.51 6,408,359,694.11

Purchases of Traded Goods 760,728,157.16 612,065,895.09

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and 1 [17,894,617.48) 28,477.441.32

finished poods

Excise duty 1,159,045,670.16 1090435827 73

Employee benefit expense 22 543,472 480.59 434,106,560.98

Depreciation expense 192,781,824.13 177,232,802 .46

Other expenses 23 1,132,705472 67 #95,010,287.00

Finance costs 24 137,902,777.79 76,602,792,14

Total expenses 1089887307053 | 9565380 £18.10

Profit before tax 1,971,540,969.46 1,726,840,510.43

Tax expense ;

- Current tax 5 LAk A5, 71990 552,3480,771.50

- Deferred tax 25 98,856,908.00 B5,882.873.00

Total tax expense 645,716,637.90 638,223,645.50

Profit for the year 1,325828,331.56 | 1088616 864.93 |

Other comprehensive income

Items that wall not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations {7,096,348.00)

Income tax relating to these items 2,456,046.00

| Total Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (4,640,302 00}

|Total comprehensive income for the year 1,321,184,029.56 616,864.93

Earnings per eguity share

Basic and Diluted earmings per share 6 14 60 60.15

INominal value of Rs. 2 each (Previous vear: Rs, 101 1

a8 i iCies 22

As per our report of even date attached
For Gandhi Rathi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

@3{“ Number: 103031W
j
=

s

C'N. Rathi
Partrer
Membership No. 39855

Place: Nagpur
Date: May 29, 2017

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

Company Secretary

Nilesh Panpaliva

Chief Financial Officer

:""n, .

= Manish Nuwal
- Managing Director &
- CEOQ
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Solar Industries India Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2017 |  March 31, 3016
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,97,15,40,959 1,72,6840,510
Adjustrments for:
Depreciation expense 19,27,81,824 17,72,32,802
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {1,40,253) (7.73.011)
Met gain on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or (1,3&,16,968) [37.42,215)
Profit on sale of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss {1,91,04 045) {T12.39.421)
Dividend and interest income (9,561,53,895) (9,03,03,402)
Finance costs 13,79,02,778 7.66,02, 792
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (70,96,348)
Impairment on property plant and equipment 65,27,890 -
Impairment loss on Trade Receivables 2,23,57.520 2,07,45,810
Impairment loss on Investrment 58,000,000 -
Met exchange differences
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,20,45,55 471 1,89,93,63,867
Adjustments for;
{Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables {42,53,18,708) 9,32,50,293
{Increase] in inventories (8,37,04,382) 123,1543,911)
{Decrease)/ Increase in trade payables {37,49,27 681) 27,30,12,595
{Increase] in other financlal assets (excluding derivatives) {10,91,06,343) (6,87,95,978)
{Increase] in current tax assets (net)
{Increase] in other assets (2,97,29,202), {5,92,71,327)|
{Decrease)/ Increase in other current llabilities [4,40,84,827) 7.27,60,253
{Increase) in other financial Habilities (excluding derivatives) 47,0542,116 £,30,06,908
Cash generated from operations 1,60,82,30,444 2,06,17,82,700
Income taxes paid 47,59,21,155 32,16,06,608
Met cash inflow from operating activities 1,13,23,00,289 1,74,01,76,092
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment [76,74,67,676) {74,75,10,011}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 24,10,768 1,89,59,268
Loans repaid/ (ghven) 57,18,564 {52,25,49,269)
Proceeds from sale of current investments (37,32,08,743) [4,95,25,835)
Proceeds from sale/ (purchase) of non- current investments 1,5849,792 [1,53,61,355)
Procesds from/{investment in) Fixed Deposit 260,45 983 12,7522 856
Dividend and interest income 9,69,20,775 503,03 402
Praofit on sale of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 1,91,04,046 72,398,421
Met cash outflow from investing activities (97,06,26,491) (1,08,09,21,823) |




Solar Industries India Limited
Staterment of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2017

Year ended

Year ended

Cash flows from financing activities

[Repayment of)/ proceeds from non current borrowings
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) current borrowings
Interest paid

Fair value changes on derivatives not designated as hedges
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders

Net cash inflow |outflow) from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Add:-Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year - [Mote - 8)

[16,36,42,410)| 18,36,71,019
42,71,16,089 (3,31,82,751)
(13,79,02,778) {7,66,02,792)
(45,84 208) {3,60,95,066)
[21,78,23.410) {53.51.15,.531]1
(10,18,36,897) (64,83,55,121))
5,98,45,901 £,99,149
2,21,03,108 2.12,08,059
8,19,49,009 2,21,03,108

As per our report of even date attached
For Gandhi Rathi & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regi umber: 103031W

Partner
Membership No. 39895

Place | Nagpur
Date : May 201723

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

Fer and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Solar Industries india Limited

w -
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Chai &

Executie Director
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Kh Pasari

Conpany Secretary

Manish Nuwal
Managing Director &
CEDQ

B
h liya
Chief Financlal Officer




Salar Industries india Limited

Statemeent of changes n egquity
[All amaoums in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
A Equity share capital
MNotes Mo ol
A at Aped 1, 2015 12,098,011.00 180,580,.110.00
Changes in equity share capital 12.00 = :
As 5t March 31, 2016 16,008,011.00 | 150,360, 110.00
Changes n equity share capital 1200 72,3592 044,00
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Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to financial statements
Far the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 1: Corporate Information

Solar Industries India Limited (‘the Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated in
Magpur. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity shares

are

listed on the MNational Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in India. The Company is

primarily involved in manufacturing of complete range of industrial explosives and explosive initiating devices. It
manufactures various types of packaged emulsion explosives, bulk explosives and explosive initiating systems,

Note 2: Significant accounting policies

21

2.2

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments and initial recognition of assets acquired under business
combinations which have been measured at fair value. The accounting policies are consistently applied by the
Company during the year and are consistent with those used in the previous year except for the changes in
accounting policies required to be made on adoption of Indian Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, {the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company’s standalone financial statements up to and for the year ended March 31, 2016 were prepared
in accordance with the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Company's first standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been
applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in notes to financial statements.

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating
cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in Schedule 11l to the Act.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of year. Although these estimates are based on the
management’'s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and

estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods.




Solar Industries india Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

b. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price, Capital work-in-progress includes cost of Property, Plant and Equipment that are not ready to
be put to use,

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major compenents) of property, plant and equipment,

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book value only if
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other
expenses on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period / year
during which such expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recoghnized in the statement
of profit and loss when the asset is disposed.

€. Intangible assets

Intangible assets including software licenses of enduring nature and contractual rights acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumuiated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and
any directly attributable cost of bri nging the asset to its working condition for its intended use,

Gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
dispasal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is disposed.

d. Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using the Straight Line Method (‘SLM’) over the
useful lives of the assets estimated by the management. The management estimates the useful lives for the
Property, Plant and Equipment as follows:

| Assets Company’s estimate of | Useful life as preseribed
o useful life (years) under schedule Il (years)
o IyeE . . =5
Factary buildings 10 30
| Other buildings ED i 60
Roads (RCC and WBM) 15 to 30 | ste10
_ Plant and Machinery: ) _ -
Factory Plant and Machinery including KP 1510 25 |  15to20
Machinery ]
Electrical installation and Lab equipment 10 10
i Bulk Deliver System (BDS) 12 8 ]
| Furniture and fixtures 1 8 to 10 10
Vehicles including Pump Trucks Bto12 | 8to10
_ﬂfﬁég;quipmmmpﬁgs | 3tob [ Itok J

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful lives of
the above classes of assets,




Solar Industries India Limited
MNotes to financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and other intangible assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors.

An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the
asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other barrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Al inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease,

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other
elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is impracticable to
separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair
value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on
the liability is recognised using the incremental borrowing rate

Where the Company is a lessee

Leases thal Lransfer subslantially all the risks and rewards incidental Lo ownership Lo the Company are
classified as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalized at the lower of the inception date fair value of the leased assets and the present
value of the minimum lease payments.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
item, are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss as per the terms of
the lease agreements.




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

h.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are recognized at cost as per Ind AS 27. Except where investments
accounted for at cost shall be accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations, when they are classified as held for sale.

Financial instruments :-

Investments and other financial assets

Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and
» those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

A. Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt
instruments into following categories:

1. Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where thase cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using effective interest rate method.

2. Fair value through profit and loss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria of amortised cost are measured at fair value through Profit and
Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

B. Equity instruments:

The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries and associates at fair value
through profit and loss. However where the Company’s management makes an irrevocable chaice on
initial recognition to present fair value gains and losses on specific equity investments in other
comprehensive income {currently no such choice made), there is no subsequent reclassification, on
sale or otherwise, of fair value gains to the statement of profit and loss.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

ii)

i)

iv)

Financial liabilities
Classification
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

¢ those to be measured subsequently at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, and
+ those measured at amortised cost

Measurement

A. Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are
initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost.

B. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes, classified as derivative
financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss,
Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on financial assets. The Company measures the ECL associated with its assets based on historical
trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other
appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based
on its histarically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ inthe P&L.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 18 issued by the ICAI, the Company has assumed that recovery of
excise duty flows to the Company on its own account. This is for the reason that it is a liability of the
manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not.
Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the Company on its own account, revenue includes excise duty only.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met befare revenue is recognised.
i} Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates,

ii} Interest iIncome

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the carrying amount and the
effective interest rate. Interest income is included under the head ‘Other income’ in the statement of
profit and loss.

fii) Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established by the reporting
date. Dividend income is included under the head ‘Other income’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. Government grant received in the form of sales tax subsidy has
been considered as revenue grant and the same has been recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan
is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

I.  Foreign currency translation

i)

m. Inventories

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction
dates, Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end
exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis.

Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventaries
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

n. Retirement and other employee benefits

(i)

Provident Fund

Provident fund is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The Company and the
eligible employees make a monthly contribution to the provident fund maintained by the
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of
the eligible employees as per the scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are charged to
the statement of profit and loss for the period / year when the contributions are due. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

(i) Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit obligation plan operated by the Company for its employees covered
under Company Gratuity S5cheme. The cost of providing benefit under gratuity plan is determined
on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date.
The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the statement
of other comprehensive income in the reporting period in which they occur. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit and loss subsequently. Overseas subsidiaries do not operate any
defined benefit plans for employees.

(iii) Leave encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months,
as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated
absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the reporting date. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are
recognized in full in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company presents the entire leave encashment liability as a current liability in the balance
sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months
after the reporting date.

o. Income taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Company operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current
income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in statement of profit
and loss.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
. substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except deferred tax liability arising
from initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/ loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses, except deferred tax assets arising from initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/ loss at the
time of transaction. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realized.
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q.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liahilities relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized in co-relation
to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount is written down to the extent the Company

does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
Segment reporting
(i) Identification of segment

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker of the Company.

(i} Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. In accordance with
paragraph 4 of Ind AS 108- “Operating Segments” the Company has disclosed segment information
anly on basis of the consolidated financial statements which are presented together along with the
standalone financial statemeants.

Earnings per share (EP5)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period [ year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period / year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split {consolidation of shares), if
any occurred during the reporting period, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period / year attributable to
the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period /
year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of shares and potential dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial
statements by the Board of Directors,

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event: it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the abligation, in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. These estimates are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management,
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Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Financlal Staterments
{all amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 4: Investments

Non-current investmants
Face value Numbar of SharesUnits Amount
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Unguoted
Investment carried at Cost
Investmant in Equity instruments in :
‘Whaolly owned subsidiaries (fully paid up)
Economic Explosives Limited Rs. 10 A8, 000, 000,00 A8, 00,000.00 | A8,00,000.00 14,45, 64, 000,00 14,45, 64, 000,00 14,49 64, 000,00
Solar Mines & Minerals Limited Rs. 10 503,000.00 50,000.00 500,000,000 5,000, 000,00 5, 00,000,00 5,000, 0000
Solar Mining Resources Limited Rs. 10 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 5,00,000.00 5,00,000,00 5,00,000000
Blastec India Private Limited Rs, 100 4,98, 766,00 4,98, 76600 45,87, 660,00 45,87, 660,00 -
Emul Tek Private Limited RAs. 10 49,77, 700.00 49,77,700.00 79,64,3200,00 79,64, 370.00 -
Solar Defence Limited Rs. 100 5.0,000.00 50, 000,00 5,00,000.00 5, 00,000.00
Sokar Defence System Limited Rs. 10 50,000.00 € = 5,00, 0000 - -
Solar Overseas Mauritivs Limited UsD 100 B5,000.00 B5,000.00 85, 000,00 38.82,21,250,00 38,82,21,250.00 38,82 71,250.00
54,81,37,230.00 | 54,76,37,230.00 | 53,4185 350.00
Inwestment carried at Cost
Investmaent in Equity instruments of Associates :
5MS Bhatgaon Mines Extention Private Limied Rs. 10 4,50,000.00 4.50,000.00 4,50,000.00 49,00,000.00 49,00,000.00 49,00, 000000
Solar Bhatgaon Extension Mines Private Limited Rs. 10 4,90,000.00 4,50, 000,00 A, 50,000,080 49,00,000.00 49, 00,000,100 A9, D0, 000,00
Prowision for Impairment (6 O, DO 00 -
: 28.00,000.00 | 58,00,000.00
Investment carried at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss
Inwestment in Equity instrumaents of Others
Rainbow Production Limited Rs. 10 - - 2,50,000.00 - + 25,00,000.00
Ganga Care Hospital Limited Rs. 10 1, 10,000.00 1, 10, 000,00 1, 10, 000,00 11,000, 000,00 11,00,000. 00 11,00,000.00
11,00,000.00 11,00, 0040.00 36,00,000.00 |
Investmant in Venture Capital Fund (Unguoted)
Eotak India Growth Fund 1l Rs. 100,000 S00.00 500,00 500.00 3,31,18,555.00 4,54,38,347.00 4,50,28,972.00
Investment in government securities A0,000.00 30,000.00
Aggregate of 58,273,855 TES.00 &0,80,05,577.00 59.26,44,222.00




Current investments

Face valus Mumber of Shares/Units Amaunt
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015 | March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2006 April 1, 2015
Osoted
Investmaent in squity instrumaents of (fully paid-up) :

Premier Explosives Limited L% 1] - 13,347.00 08 502 .58
Jal Corporation Limited R 1 - 10.200.00 10, 20000 . 704, TE0.00 514.590.00
Reliance industrizl Infrastructune Limited Rs. 10 BH7.00 BET7.00 SET.O0 450,812.00 A0,545.00 A27.124.00
Tata Iron Stesl Co Limited Rz. 10 - 100000 1,000,040 319,500.00 29E,350.00
Klurh industries Limited Rs. 2 5,331.00 5,331.00 533100 28,350.00 2B,360.00
IDFC Limited Rs. 10 10, 50000 38,000.00 - 594,050.00 1,535,200.00 -
|IDFC Bank Limited Rs. 10 948000 38, D00 O 562,164, 00 1,833 500,00

ukcand Limited Rs. 10 30,930.00 - 2,625957.04 .

Sunil Hitech Engineers Limited Rs.1 116,000.00 2 1,365,320,32 3

HINC Growth Plan R 10 62,133.47 19,206, 140,00

HIDFC Prudence Fund-Direct Plan-Growth Option Rs. 10 106,465.98 50, 249,065.00 -

Redlance Regular Saving Fund-Balanced Plan Rs. 10 1,249,774.38 62,062, 795.7%

Direct Growth Dotson

Refiance Regular Saving Fund-Debit Plan-Direct Rs. 10 1.808,325.21 1,528,935.25 65,973,737.38 31,501,571.64

Growth Plan

CICT Prucentiol Liguid - Direct Pan - Growth Rs. 10 124,685.06 30,014,813.00

Birla Sun Life Balanced '95 Fund-Growth Direct Rs. 10 29,969 .92 - 21,315,701.28
Plan

Birla Sun Life Balanced '35 Fund-Growth Regular Re. 10 3383734 23,097,031 .96
Plan

Birla Sun Life Cash Manager-Growth Direct Plan Rs. 10 123,280.30 S00G5,637.60

5Bl Magnum Balanced Fund-Reg Growth Rs. 10 201,216.56 21,963,854.08

5B Magnum Balanced Fund-Dir Growth Rs. 1 185,570.81 21,033 468,01

Kotak Balance Direct Plan Grewth Rs. 10 898,773.31 21,154 427490

Kotak Liguid Direct Plan Growth Rs, 10 B065.42 20,003, 77000

Franklin ndia Treasury Managament Account- Rs. 10 H0,567.58 S0,024,074%.00
Suner Institutional Plan-Direct-Growth

-
| 42,560,687.86 | (5553497660 | 2.266.926.96 |
Aggregate armount of quoted imvestments and A4} 550,687 .86 55,534,976.64 2.066,906.98
imarket value thereol




Solar Industries india Limitad
MNaotes to Financial Statements

(Al amounts in Rupses, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5: Loans
B March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 apil 1, 2015
Current. Won-Current Current Mon-Current | Current | Mon-Curent

Unsecured, considensd good
Loan to associates [refer note 30) 10,181, 326,00 - #,979,074.00 - #,104 731,00 -
Loan to subsidiaries, step down subsidiaries 324,969,442 .46 316,116,543.00 359,036,987 46 206,629,299 62 B9, 781,125.00 6,464,081 .04
[refer note 301
Loans to Employess - . - - 221, 00000 -
Loan bo Other 238,595,863.21 SE0,475,674.00 | 32362317711 56(0,388.874.00 | 21987396271 S60,349, 144,00
Secured consldered Good
Loan 1o others 158,734,354 BS 160,139,354 B5 - 177,453,354 .85

57379663167 | 103533157085 | 69163923867 ) 927.157,528.47 | _297,980.818.71 | 798,266.673.89.
Note:

1. Loans are non derlvative financial assets which generate a fixed or variabile interest income for the growp. The carrying value may be affected by changes in the credit risk

of the counberparties,

1. Won Current unsecured loans to other includes ampunts which are putstanding for mere than 12 months and as approved by board, no interest is charged on the same.
The Company has filed a litigation against the counterparty for recovery of the said amount. Considering the current arbitration praceedings, management believes that
this armount would be recovered In Full, however the timing of recovery is uncertain and hence the same is classified a5 non-current,

Naote 6: Other financial assets
March 31, 2017 Mareh 31, 2016 _Aprill2ons
_Currant Non-Current | Current Non-Current Cument | Non-Current |
Derivative Instruments at fair value through
orofit ot lass
Foreign-exchange forward contracts 44,621,617.00 117,827, 543.00 - 65,973,339.00 -
Interest rate swaps 11,557,637 {4
56,179,254.00 - 117,827,543 a73 00
Others
Sales Tax Recevable 149,892 BR0.99 215,481,968 98 297,159,000.00 157,723,111.53 151,922,975.00 129,103,570.16
interest accrued but not due on Fixed 339,687.44 - 1,726,083.00 - 6, TH5.668.41 -
Nennsit
 350,32,568.43 | 2154B1,968.98 | 294,885083.00 | 157,733,111.53 | 258,708,646.41 | 129,103,570.16
40681182243 | 21548196898 | 41671262600 | 15772311153 | 329.682,383,3). 123.103,570.16,

hotes:

1. Derivative strurments at fair value through profit or loss reflect the positive change in fair value of those foreign exchangs forward conbracts that are not designated in
nedge relationship, but are, nevertheless, intended to reduce the level of foreign currency risk for foreign currency borrowing.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
{Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 7: Trade recelvables

Trade receivahles
Receivables from related parties (refer note 30]

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 2015
1,287 ,086,387.43 943,743,320.08 1,059,806,104.00
604,895,550, 28 522,919,909.52 500,105,420.00

{165,734,973.00

) [143,377,453.04)

(122,631 644.00}

accounts)

71| _ianamsrese| ievzese00]
Break-up of securlty details
March 31, 2017 16 April 12015
Secured, considered good 54,131,086.89 27,B48,045.31 39,087,277.00
Unsecured, considered good 1,672,115 877.82 1,195.437,731.25 1,398,184 603,00
Doubtful 16%, 734 973.00 143,377 453.04 132,631 64400
1,891981,937.71 | 1466,663,229.60 |, 1,559,913,524.00
Allowance for doubtful debrs {165,734,973.00) (143,377,453.04) (122,631,644.00)
1,726,246,964.71 | 1,323,285,776.56 | 1,437,281 880.00
Mote B: Cash and bank balances
March 31, 2017 | 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Cash and cash eguivalents
Balances with banks
In current accounts 78,595,279.85 17,245,623.76 14,719,545 64
Cash an hand 3,353,739.72 4,857 484 08 6AB4,413.48
_$ioes00957 | zz03joa7al | 3130595911 ]
3
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Other bank balances
Deposit accounts - with remaining maturity of bess 1,389,516.90 1,493.213.06 160,260,445.81
than 12 Months
Deposit accounts - held as margin money 13,093,897 .49 38,144,519.67 789247516
Earmarked balances {on unclaimed dividend 612,085.53 1,503,750.53 511,118.53

X

41509549992 | . L1SL383.06)




Solar Industries india Limited

Notes to Financial Statemants
{8l amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Mote 9: Other Assets
L. March 31, 2017 MW ___April 1. 3015
Current Non-Current Current Current Non-Current_|
Capital advances - 55,678, 744,35 - 85,421 46087 E 51,709,654 38
Advances ather than capital advances :
Prepaid gratuity 1,234 06700 767788751 - -
Security deposits - 24,396,212.00 . 26,695,365.00 . 29,838, 805.00
Aevances to suppliers for goods and 105.840,837.88 % 19,078,035.45 - 112,746,658 64 =
SETVICES
Advances to staff 1,670,004, 90 4.618,229.90 2,TES,600.90
Claims recehvable 1,617.488.00 117,668.00 =
Balances with revenue authorithes 166,143, 68043 133,043,275 89 68,409 877.00
217.272,49027] 8730902335 214,857,209.24] _119.994.713.38| _154.032.136.54

Note 10: Inientories

Raw materials & Packing Material
Wiork-in-progriss

Finished poods

Traded poods

Stores and spares

March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 |  April 1, 2015
541,195,506.71|  468,935,565.62]  305,705,532.60
98,398,881.91|  S0.011ZBIEH|  67,193,40302
a4 481 5981 .46 35,474 958,21 28,517 976.68
1,372.572.94 . 1,297,424.87
92,445,26522| 10016801484  B03IL5TE2Z

778,294,208.24| __634,569.876.35) AGL043.913.39)




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 11: Equity share capital

Number of 5 Amount
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 M| 1, 2015
Authorised eguity share capital
(face value Rs.10 each) - 27,000,000 27,000,000 . 270,000, 000,00 270,000.000.00
[face value Rs.2 each) 135, 00, 000 - - 270,000, D00, 0 - -
135,000,000 27,000,000 27,000,000 270,000,000.00) 270 000 270,000,000, 00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid share 18,098,011 18,098,011 180,980,1 1IJ.DD1 180,980,110.00
capital (face value Rs. 10 eachl
lssued, Subscribed and fully paid share 00,490,055 180,980,110.00
capital (face value Rs.2 eachl
20,490,033 18,098,011 |  18,096.011
(a) Movements in eguity share capital
Mumbser of Shares Amount
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Number of Shares at the beginning of the 18,098,011 18,098,011 18,058,011 180,980,110.00|  180,980,110.00|  180,980,110.00
rear
Add: Shares split during the vear 12,392,044 i
Number of Shares at the end of the year 90,490,055 18,098,011 18,098,011 180,980,110.00( _180,980,110,00|  180,980,110.00

{b) Terms/ rights attached to eguity shares

The Campany has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.2 per share. Each sharehelder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensulng Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
liguidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amaunts, in propartion to their

shareholding,

{c] Equity shares held by uitimate holding/ holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates
The Company heing ultimate halding company, there are na shares held by any other holding, uitimate holding company and their subsidiaries associates,

{d] Details of eguity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregale shares in the Company

Mo of shares

Mame of the shareholder % holding
March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015 March 31, 2017
Shri Satyanarayan Nuwal 22.4B% 212.43% 22.41% 10,343,655
Shri Kallashchandra Nuwal 19.60% 19,608 19.60% 17,739 095
‘Lt Indira Devi Nuwal 6.15% 6.15% 6.15% 5,568,230
Amit Leela Devi Nuwal 5.61% 5.61% 5.61% 5,075,940
Smit Sohan Devi Nuwal 5.14% 5.14% 5.14% 4,649,690

March 31, 2016

4,068,739
3,547 819
1,113,646
1,015,188

929,938

April 1, 2015

4,055,787
3,547,819
1,113,646
1,015,188

929,938

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders) members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding benficial interest, the
above shareholding represents the legal ownership of shares.




Solar Industries India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements

{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Financial liabilities

Mote 12: Mon-current borrowings

March 3 7 Ma 2016 1, 2015
Sacured Borrowings carried at amortised cost
Term loans from Banks
Foreign currency loan from Banks (LISD) 1,49,09,32, B50.05 1,19,03,54,179.80 84 50,14,169.00
Interest Accrued but not due 72,20,333.14 49,76,180.00 12,85,831.00
1,49,81,53,183.19 1,19,53,30,359.80 000.00 |
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt {included in note 16} {68, 79,01,500.00) {22,36,80,420.00 16,20,11 428.00
Less: interest accrued on non-current borrowings (Included in note 16] (72,20,333.14) (49,76,180.00) (12 85 831.00)
| 96,66.73.750.80 | 78,30,02,741.00
Mote 13: Current borrowings
March 31, 2007 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Secured
From banks
Foreign currency working capital loan 14,50,58,265.00 - 41,51,86,652.00
Indian Rupee working capital loan 17,65,910.39 16,34,73,447.45 40616624 48
Buyers credit 18,2648 695.56 - 14,64,30,B43.55
Unsecured
From banks
Buyers credit 32,81,16,860.22 -
Indian Rupee working capital loan 45,00,00,000.00 r
From related party 21,15,69,921.78 7.72,46,905.78
99,10,42,792.73 | 56,88,37,213.45 &0, 120.03
55 |nte ed on current borrowings (included in no (10,43 78B.56) {9,54,298.12 (11,68 454.00
98,99,99,004.17 21 10
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Solar industries (ndia Limited
Mates to Financial Statements
[ Al amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 18: Deferred tax liabilities

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment . 738,104 725,00 £23,048,929.00 547.843,187.00
Financial assets at falr value theough profit or loss 1,396,494.00 3,476,877.00 2,012,504.00
Derivative Instruments at fair value through profit or loss 4,652,139.00 3,065,483.00 -
Prepaid Gratukty 2,503, 711.00 2,657.317.00
(her ltems . 1,272,154.00

746,747,069.00 534,420, B60.00 540,855 601.00
Deferred Lax assets
Derivative Instruments at fair value through profit or loss {9,258, 145.00)
Prevision for investments in assoclates 13,391, 780.00) -
Trade receivables (57,360,874.00) (49,622,937.00] {41,682,496.00)
Employee benefits payables 4, 795,630.00) 3 -
MAT Credit . (90, 400,066 35)

B5 284, (49,622 937.00)] (141 m,:m.ar."
Deferred tax liabilities (net) ee88,797,523.00 |__908,514,983.63
Movemants in deferred tax labilitins
Property, plant and | Financial assets at Other Total
equipment and fair value through items
investment property | profit and loss

At April 1, 2015 547 84318700 [7.285 641000 (132,082, 562.35) A0, 514 983,65
Charged) (credited)
- to profit or loss 76,106,742 00 13,788,001.00 [4,010,870.00) B5,882,873.00
BAAT credit utilized = = G0, 400, 6635 90,400,066.35
At March 31, 2016 _623,948,929.00 B,542, 360,00 [45,693,366.00)] _ 584,797,923.00
Charped/ [credited)
-t profit or loss 114,245, 796,00 (4%3,727.00) {14,885,161.00) QR 856,908.00
- toy other comprehensive income - (2,456,046.00) [2,456,046.00)
At Ma 2017 738,194,725.00 633.00 [ [63,044,573.00) ‘:'KH!‘&TBEM




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Financial Statements
(Al amounts in Rupees, unbess otherwise stated)

Note 15: Trade payables

rch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 |1, 20
Currient
Trade payables 403,644,042.75 695,157,568 54 5005, 776,658,594
Trade payables to related parties (refer note 31) 117,530.01 £3,601,685.45 -
7276 7re7e925399 | 50577665854
Note 16: Other financial Rabilities
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Current
Derivative instruments at fair valuee through profit or loss
Foreign-exchange forward conlracts 42, 737.650.00 76,923.579.00 37,798,521.00
Interest rate swaps - 32,046, 74800 55.413,168,00
42,737,650.00 108,970,327.00 93,211 689.00
CHheers
Capital creditors 596711576 11,111,074.63 2.685,270.59
Current maturities of long term debt G6B7,901,500.00 123,680, 420,00 162,011,428.00
Irterest accrued on non-current borrowings 1.220,333.14 4,576,180.00 1,285831.00
Interest accrued on current borrowings 1.043,7RA.56 554,298,12 1,168,454.00
Liahikities, towards employes benefits 50,332.869.00 40,370,566.38 31,907 498,38
Unpaid dividend 545 627.00 1,376,578.00 403,727.00
752,011,233 46 282,469,117.13 199,462, 208.97
z [ 391,439,444.15 | 292,673,897.91
Note 17: Other current liabilities
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Statutory dues payables 67,090,476,17 47 470,537.43 42,318,907.03
Advances from customers 114,205, /B6.59 177,910,552.41 110,301,930.24
225




Solar Industries India Limited

Motes to Financial Statements

|l amounts in Rupees , unless otherwise stated)
Mote 18: Revenue from operations

The group derives the following types of revenue:

March 31, 2017

Sale of products (including excise duty)

12,10,20,20,009.30

March 31, 2016
10,82,55,00,736.93

Other operating revenus 43,01, 54,490,230 42,55,18,076.49
Note 19: Other inceme and other gains/{losses)
(a) Other income
rch31,2017 | March31,2006
Interest Income
On financiol assets carried af amortised cost
From Subsidiaries 5,72,53,710.00 3,39,26,304.50
From Others 3,73,00,365.50 2,89,26,808.26
On Deposits with Bank 9,12,939.57 27,27,3092.86
Profit on sale of financlal assets carried at fair value through profit or loss 1,91,04,046,13 72,39,421.01
Interest received on income tax refund 7,26,680.00 2,46,65,595.00
Dividend income from equity Investments designated at 57,300.50
fair value through Profit or loss
11,52,97,941.20 9,75 .53
{b) Other gains/(losses)
March 31, 2017 16
Met gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,40,253.32 7.73,010.,67
Met gain on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or 1,38,16,967.97 37,42,215.00
boss
Fair value galm on derivatives not designated as hedges 45,84 387.00 3,60,95,067.00
1,85,41,608.29 4,06,10,292.67

[Total (a+h)

Mote 20; Cost of materials consumed

March 31, 2007

March 31, 2016

Raw materials at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases
Less: Raw material at the end of the year

45, 89,35, 565,62
6,85,79,87,255.60
54,11,95,506.71

30,57,05,532.60
6,57,15,89,727.13
46,89,35,565.62

5,78.57,27,314.31

694.11

Mote 21: Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Opening balance
Work-in progress 5,00,11,287.68 6,71,93,403.02
Finished goods 3,54,74,958.21 2,85,17,976.68
Traded goods - 12,97,424.87
12,54,86,245.89 8,70,08 804.57 |




Solar industries India Limited
Motes to Financial Statements

ANl amounts in Rupees , unless otherwise stated)
Closing balance
Work-in progress 9 8B 98 881.91 9,00,11,287.68
Finished goods 4,44 81 98146 354,74 ,956.21
Traded goods . =
33 37 12,54,86,245.89
{1,78,94,617.48) 12,84,77,441.33)]

MNote 22: Employee benefit expense

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Salaries, wages and bonus 51,55,29,108.74 41,28,73,717.49
Contribution to provident fund, gratuity 2,06,54,297.00 1,53,39,301.00
Staff welfare expenses 72,49,074.85 58,93,542.49
54,3472,48059 | 43.4106560.98
MNote 23: Other expenses
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Consumption of stores and spares 7,35,01,126.39 5,03,80,060.33
Excise Duty on Inventory 43.82,211.00 34,25,974.00
Sales tax expenses B,27.695.00 1,51,256.00
Repairs and maintenance ;
Pant and machinery 4,31,51,796.82 3,46 49 065,30
Buildings 1,18,00,374.49 69,91,682.15
Others 4,20,16,788.58 423 08 698.33
Water and electricity charges 14,02,04,083.77 13,29,11,152.44
Rates and taxes 2,17,67,700.67 1,50,93,386.98
Legal and professional fees 5,72,18,568.42 3,53,63,551.53
Travel and conveyance 477,28 B52.06 3,74,B5,348.82
Export Expenses 16,15,98,575.19 14,45,06,517.51
Transportation Charges 10,53,71,656,08 £,89,80,311.03
Remunaration To Directors 8,63,98,560.00 7,19,75,000.00
Pump Truck Expenses 5,64,82,593.26 4,45,95,019.46
Security Service Charges 5,52,63,933.82 4,17, 57,327.85
Sales Promaotion Expenses 1,77.68,799.05 1,09,87,173.55
Donations 2,44 B4, 338,00 2,15,81,427.00
Advertisement EXpenses 49,90,029.45 46,35,562.38
Advance, investrment Written OFf 18,87,150.00 25,00,000.00
Directors' Sitting Fees £,80,000.00 9,93,400.00
Met foreign exchange losses/ (gain) {60,47,245.98) {1,84,15,295.59)
Impairment loss on Property Plant & Equipment 65,27,885.75 -
Impairment loss on Investment 98,00,000.00 -
impairment loss on Trade Receivables 2,23,57,520.00 2,07 .45 B10.00
Corporate soclal responsibility expenditure (refer note 23(b} below) 2,83,36,316.00 2.22,90,000.00
Payments to auditors {refer note 23(a) below) 54,48,575.00 52,25, 800,00
Miscellaneous Expenses (includes Printing , Communication , Postage , office 10,85,57,525.85 7,38,88 053.84
expenses etc)
11327,05472.67] __89,50,10287.00
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Motes to Financial Statements

{All amounts in Rupees , unless otherwise stated)
Mote 23(a): Details of payments to auditors

_ March31, 2017 | March31, 2016 |
Payment to auditors
s auditor:
Audit fee 2,900,000.00 2,400,000,00
Tax audit fee 500, 000,00 S00,000.00
Limmvitend review 75,750.00 10,000.00
In other capacities
Taxation matters 1,095,1%0.00 1,480,750.00
Certification fees 423,175.00 375,050.00
Vat audit fees 454, 500,00 400,000.00
344857500 5225,800.00)
Mote 23(b): Corporate social responsibility expenditure
arch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Contribution to Revenue Expenditure 28,336, 316.00 22,2940,000.00
28,336,316.00 ] 22,250,00000
Amount reguired to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 27,433,366 21,691,831
Amount spent during the year on
(i} Construction/acquisition of an asset -
[ii} On purposes other than (i} above 28,316,316 23,390,000
Note 24: Finance costs
“March 31,2017 | March 31,2016
Interest on Borrowings
T Banks 115,134,991.79 70,350,700.14
To Related party 22,767 TRE.00 6,252,092.00
iiilmii"‘ﬁ Thﬂiﬂl.i-ﬂ-
Maote 25: Tax expense
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Current tas
Current tax on profits for the year 545,905,253.00 557,989,471,00
Adiustments for current tax of prior periods 054,476.90 |5,648,698.50)
546,859,715.80 |\ 552,340,772.50
Deferred tax
Decrease {increase) in deferred tax assels (15,925,347.00) 1317, 704,00
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax labifities 114 782,255.00 {B4,565,169.00)
98,856, 908.00 85 1.00
HEI‘JHé!E 20 223
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[All amounts in Rupees , unkess otherwise stated)

Nuuli.:ﬁc Earnings per share [EPS)

rch 3 7 March 31, 2016
Basic and Diluted EPS
profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating baskc and diluted EPS: 1,321,184,029.56 1,088,616,864.93
Weighted average number of equity shares usad 35 the denominator in cabcutating basic and 90,490,055.00 18,098,011.00
diluted EPS
Basic and Diluted EPS attributable to the equity holders of the company (Rs.) 14,60 650.15
Nominal value of shares (As.] 2,100 10.00




Solar industries India Limited

Motes to Financial Statements
(A&l amounts in Rupees , unless otherwise stated)

MNote 25: Earnings per share (EPS)

March 31, 2017

Basic and Diluted EPS

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic and diluted EPS: 1,32,11,84,029.56 1,08,86,16,864.93
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic and 9,04,90,055.00 1,B0,98,011.00
diluted EFS

Basic and Diluted EPS attributable to the equity holders of the company [Rs.} 14.60 60.15
Mominal value of shares (fs.] .00 10,00 |

March 31, 2016




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Financial Statements
(Al amounts in Rupees , unless otherwise stated)

Mote 25: Earnings per share (EPS)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Basic and Diluted EPS
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic and diluted EPS: 1,32,11,84 029.56 1,08,86,16,864.93
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic and 9,04,90,055.00 1,80,98,011.00
diluted EFS
Basic and Diluted EPS attributable to the equity holders of the company (Rs.) 14.60 60.15
Mominal value of shares [Rs.} 2.00 10.00
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Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 28: Employee Benefit obligations
(i} Post-employment obligations

a) Gratuity

The Company operate a defined benefit plan viz. namely gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee
who has completed at least 5 years of service gets a gratuity on departure & 15 days {minimum) of the last drawn salary for

each year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarized the compaonents of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss,
other comprehensive incoma, and the funded status and amount recognized in the balance sheet.

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as

follows:

Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

and loss

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Service cost 3,548 640 3,518,000
Met Interest Cost (614,155) -
Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss { 2,934,485 3,518,000
Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Opening amount recognized in OC! outside of statement of profit or - -
account
Actuarial gain / {loss) on liabilities (6,936,479) (2,339,000)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on assets {159,869) ]
Closing of amount recognized in OCI outside of statement of profit (7,096,348) (2,339,000

The amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet Statement

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Present value of funded obligaticns 53,163,445 41,867,000
Fair value of plan assets 60,397,512 49,543,933
Net defined benefit liability / (assets) recognized in balance sheet (7,234,067) (7.676,933)
Change in Present Value of Obligations
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

Opening of defined benefit cbligations 41,867,000 36,456,000
Service cost 3,548 640 3,518,000
Interest Cost 3,349,360 2,917,000
Benefit Paid [2,538,034) (3,363,000)
Actuarial |Gain}fLoss on total liabilities: 6,936,475 2,339,000
Closing of defined benefit obligation 53,163,445 1 41,867,000




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Opening fair value of plan assets 49,543,933 46,696,933
Actual Return on Plan Assets 3,803,646 3,802,000
Employer Contribution 9,587,968 2,408,000
Benefit Paid (2,538,034) {3,363,000)
Clnrsinlr fair value of plan assets { /0,397,513 - 49,543 933

1

The major categories of plan assets as a parentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows :

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Investments with insurer (LIC) 100% 100%
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows :

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Discount Rate 6.8% per annum 8% per annum

Rate of increase in Compensation levels
Rate of Return on Plan Assets

7.5% per annum
8% per annum

5% per annum
8.14% per annum

The astimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and

other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the interest rate prevailing in the market on that date,

applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled,

Sensitivity Analysis

Following table shows the sensitivity results on liability due to change in the assumptions;

March 31, 2017 Impact Impact
{Absolute) (%)

Base Liability 53,163,445
Increase Discount Rate by 0.50% 51,313,566 (1,849 879)| -3.48%
Decrease Discount Rate by 0.50% 55,146,884 1,983,439 | 3.73%
Increase Salary Inflation by 1% 56,861,790 3,698,345 | 6£.96%
Decrease Salary Inflation by 1% 49,841,542 (3.321,903)| -6.25%
Increase in Withdrawal Assumption by 5% 52,218,042 (945,403)] -1.78%
Decrease in Withdrawal Assumption by 5% 54,543,197 1,379,752 | 2.60%

Notes :

1. Liabilities are very sensitive to discount rate, salary inflation and attrition rate,
2, Liabilities are very less sensitive due to change in mortality assumptions. Hence, sensitivities due

to change in mortality are ignored.
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Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 29: Commitments and contingencies

Capital and other Commitments

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Estimated amount of contracts remalning to be executed on capital account 2,597,35,982 5,21.40,659 2,65,25,685
[net of advances)

Contingent liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Corporate guarantees given by the Company on behalf of its wholly owned 1,02,13,08,750 1,04,34,37,500 65,61,97,500
averseas subsidiary in respect of loans taken

Performance and financial guarantees ghven bry the Company 79,16,76,510 45,01,61,495 96,55.49,196
Guarantess given by Company's Bankers on behalf of the Company, against 1,06,99,42,500 1,19,25,00,000 12,49,90,000
sanctioned letter of credit [SBLC's)

Excise demands- matters under dispute (net of deposit made)® 4,91,96,708 4,91,59,239 5,80,32.812
Sales tax deferment 9,47,00,000 9,47,00,000 9,47,00,000
sales tax demands- matters under dispute® 11,62,14,202 8,44,08 646 5,99,05,044
Income tax demands- matters under dispute® 2,83,09,872 3,20,35,935 3,02,50,166

*The Company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax/legal advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in
the appeliate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements far the tax demand raised.
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Notes ta Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

it

Mote 30: Related Party Disclosures

Names of related parties and related party relationship :

Subsidiaries and associates

Note no. 27 provides the information about the group's structure including the details of
the subsidiaries, step down subsidiaries and associate companies

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Shri 5.M. Nuwal

Shri K.C. Nuwal

Shri Manish Nuwal
Shri & 0 Vakil

Shri Anil Kumar lain
Shri Nilesh Panpaliya
smt Khushboo Pasari

Non executive directors®

Shri Anant Sagar Awasthi
Shri Dilip Patel

Shri Ajai Nigam

Shri Amrendra Verma
smt Madhu Vij

* Non Executive Independent Directars were only paid sitting fees for attending Board &
Board Committee meetings for the year 2016-17.

Company has not entered into any other transactions with its Non Executive
Independent Directors or the enterprises over which they have significant influence.

Enterprises, over which control or significant influence is exercised by individuals listed
in 'II' above {with whom transactions have taken place]

Solar Synthetics Private Limited
Commercial 5ales Corporation

Enterprises, over which control or significant influence is exercised by individuals listed
in "II' above (other than IV above)

Solar Initiating Systems Limited

Mahakal Infrastructures Private Limited

Mahakal Project Private Limited

Magpur Infrastructure Private Limited

Solar Processors (Bhilwara) Limited

Gulmohar Developers and Constructions Private Limited
Sun Developers and Constructions Private Limited
Sunbearn Developers and Constructions Private Limited




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

sundrop Realtors Private Limited
Sunland Infracon Private Limited
Sunlight Infraventures Private Limited

Vi Other related party

solar Industries India Limited employee group gratuity assurance scheme
{Post emplyoment benefit plan of the Company)

Refer to Note 28 for information on transactions with post emplyoment benefit plan
mentioned above




2 : & 00S'LETY'CY | DOS'LEWE'PO'T | DSLSDETZOT Aseipisqns Jo jeyaq uo UaNE aejuesEng
IGE'ZT'T ape’ar PES'SEPO'T - ZoL'T0'0L"9 PEEOL'T sagqeAed a0 fsaqehed apesy
- - % OTP'SDIODS | OTE'BTSE'TS OSSSE'ErD9 SB|QENESE] BPEIL
gos'or'zL'L | 2ZR'ER'STTE - % - - - - LA By SUBDT
- - T6LvO0'TE PLO'GL'EE arETEIOT | T98'ZE'BYET | LBT99'95'9S CEE'SEOT Y uan® sueo
— SI0Z EI It S0 | 90¢ oz FT0E i
‘7 Juchy TE Y TE YuEW Ty TE yuey qEynEW | STOZ Ty | TEyEN | TEWIEWN | STOZ'T pedy | 9TOZ “TE yasew | LTOT TE YRIEN
aABGE Jj, Ul pals) SIERRAPUL
Ag pas1aiana 5| aousngul quExpuiis
0 [DaUO3 YHYM Ao ‘sasndiau] jpuLasIag Juswaieuryy Aoy SBYEIOTTY saEpIFqNs Uumop dags pue sapEIpsqng UORAESURL] 0 SIMEN
pua seak sy 18 5T SEOURIEE "9
- DoO'0F TL'BE AUB|pISqnS Jo J{EYS] UO USAE BAURIEND
= o000’ - saay Funus
. . EOS'E6"er’L | L9E'OT'ER'E S 0 UojEIBUNLaY
TEO'IS'TY AR LT et 1sauEu|
- . IZE'TYE LTR'TE0T Liv'Te'EE'E OTLERTL'S panSaa.l 15asEa]
906''TLL | STO'ETEFET - . - - {10u) seed auy Bupng predas fuss e sueo)
= = ErEpL'E ISZ'T0TT GTREL'LHEY 2EEET'PS L {3au} reah ayy Buung (pedad) fuand sueo]
g6L 00T LeE'La'Y 5 = - = pred sy
859°BF T LIE'6E'SE BSUBI JO YN
0B5'TL'S GEPSI'ET TOY'9E 68 79 BLEET'ESTL SIuUBUOd LT PUE [BUAJELL MES LD FFRYIINY
. * = FIEFE'SE'S sajes aloid
DOS'LE'SY'T SI9'ETY SHAESE PR JO 3)ES
LELSEFE SOTTT'EL {houeynsucs [e2muyaet) swesl Bupriada uou Jayg
985’0t sk LTE'BOTE puinou) Funesads a0
PS LE'6LEE ORT'05 TZ0ET sa0Ases pue Sanposd jo S2ES
stoz | Libe 0T ior | S0z Fiiia
TE Yl “TE yaaEw TE BN | TE PIEW ‘TE YEN ITEMEN | STOT "TE YoU4RW | LTOT TE YEN
anoge ||, Ul paIsi)
senpiajpo) Ag patiaiana 5
sawanpul Jueguis o jenuas JBuunEihg sauEpEgns
| weum sano ‘sespdiagul wswaleuey hoy SOYEIOTTY umop dags pue SBUE|PISGRS UORIBTURLL JO BINJEN

sapued PaIEjel YHM SUORIESURL] B

pus-1eak 2y 18 BUpUEISING SEOUEIRG 33 puB SEaUKENY 10 I5IN0S AUBUIPUG AU U1 SEUed PaVEES 341 YuM Jeak syl BUND N0 PRUIES SUCIDesUEL 0] uselied Sjjelap BuiMogo 3y L

(paieas aSIMIAgA0 SsaqEn “sasdny U) SURoWE |iv]
£T0Z “T6 YPIEI Papus jeak ay) Joj SIUALISINS [ERPURU|L] 03 S810N
P[] BIPU| SBUIENPY| SE|0S




Solar industries India Limited
Maotes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(&)l amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Transactions with related parties during the year

Mature of Transaction March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Sales of products and services

Econamic Explosives Limited 665,032,213 441,812,525

Blastec (india) Private Limited 32,470,313 18,274,532

Migachem Nigeria Limited 167,101,156 74,416,566

Salar Explochem Zambia Limited 69,251,006 128,304,728

Solar Patlayici Maddeler Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim 184,630,912 175,129,193

Sirketi

Solar Mining Services (Pty) Ltd A3, 664,630
Tatal 1,302,150,230 BE7,937,544|
Other operating income

Economic Explosives Limited-Licence 1,109,917 4,510,586
Total 109,917 &Sw
Other non operating income (Technical consultancy)

Migachem Nigeria Limited 1,811,206 2,436,777
Total 1811206 2,436,777
Sale of fiwed assets

Blastec (india) Private Limited 418,625 16,537 500
Tatal 428,625 16,537,500
Project Sales

solar Mining Services {Pty) Ltd 53,594,318
Tatal 53,594,318 =
Purchase of raw material and components

Economic Explosives Limited 716,313,879 548,936,401

Solar Synthetics Private Limited 1,526,496 621,990
Total 717,840,375 649,558,391
Purchase of License

Economic Explosives Limited 9,589,877 2,148,650
Total 9,580,877 2,148,659
Rent paid

Solar Synthetics Private Limited 467,947 207,798
Total 467,947 207,798
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Loans given/ (repaid) during the year (net)

SMS Bhatgaon Mines Extension Private Limited 10,51,302 772,163

Solar Bhatgoan Extension Mines Private Limited 150,950 102,080

Economic Explosives Limfited (1,44,08,672) 18,70,11,525

Blastec (India) Private Limited (1,74,02,327) 10,33,40,636

Salar Mines & Minirals Ltd 7.87,422 748,760

Solar Cwerseas Singapore Pte Ltd. 22,941 24579

Solar Overseas Mauritius Ltd. 10,86, 76,880 14,53,91,880

Emul Tek Private Limited {22,31,846) 22,31,346

Solar Defence Limited |24, 700} 24,700
Total 7,66,21,950| 43,96,48 269|
Loans taken/ repaid during the year [net)

Commercial 5ales Corporation 13,43,23,016 T.72,46,906
Total 13,43,73 016 7,72,46,906(
Interest received

Econamic Explosives Limited 1,08,12,598 41,51,705

Blastec (India) Private Limited 1,87.27.514 1,46,88,558

Solar Mines B Minerals Ltd 7,858,815 717,680

Ermul Tek Private Limited 2,45,064 1,77.888

Solar Overseas Mauritius Ltd 2,85,55778 1,32.01,067

Solar Overseas Singapore Pte Lid. 22,941 24,5T9

SM35 Bhatgaon Mines Extension Private Limited 957,182 8,54, 737

Solar Bhatgoan Extension Mines Private Limited 1,384,645 1,10,089
Tatal 5,83,45,537 3,39,26,303
interest paid

Commercial Sales Corporation 2,27,67, 786 62,52,092
| Tatal 2,27,67,786 52,52,092
Remuneration to KMP*

Shri S.N. Nuwal 2,70,00,000 2,25,00,000

Shri K.C. Muwal 2,70,00,000 2,25,00,000

Shri Manish Nuwal 2,70,00,000 2,25,00,000

Shri R D Vakil 25,593,200 24,84,000

Shrl Anil Kumar lain 2B,05,360 14,51,000

Shri Nilesh Fanpaliya 27.31,320 15,98,180

Mrs. Khushboo Pasari 780287 6,60,323
Tatal B.99,10,267 7,46,93,503
Sitting feas

Shri Anant Sagar Awasthi 2,15,000 2,00,000

Shri Dilp Patel 2,55,000 1,80,000

Shri Ajal Nigam 1,60,000 1,40,000

shri Amrendra Verma 1,50,000 1,500,000

Smt Madhu Vij 1,00,000 1,560,000
Total B, 80,000 8,530,000

Guarantee given on behalf of subsidiary
Solar Overseas Mauritius Limited - 38,72,40,000
Total - 38,72,40,000

*Thiz aforesaid ameunt does not indudes amount in respect of gratuity and leave since the
actuarial valuation has been taken for the Company as a whole and individual amounts are not
determinable.




solar Industries India Limited
MNotes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Balance outstanding at the year end were as follows:

Balances as at year end March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Loans given
SMS Bhatgaon Mines Extension Private Limited 89,45,296 78,932,994 71,21,731
Solar Bhatgoan Extension Mines Private Limited 12,36,030 10,85,080 9,583,000
Feonamic Fxplosives | imited 17,2602 853 18,70,11,575 .
Blastec {India) Private Limited 15,23,66,580 16,97,68,916 6,54.2&230|
Solar Mines & Minirals Ltd 79,67,555 71,80,133 64,31,373
solar Overseas Singapore Pte Ltd. 2,52,348 2,29,407 2,04,828
Solar Overseas Mauritius Ltd. 30,78,96,640 19,92,19,760 5,38,27,880
Emul Tek Private Limited - 22,311,846 -
Solar Defence Limited 24,700 -
Total 65,12,67,311 57,46,45,361 13,49,97,092
Loans taken
Commercial 5ales Corporation 21,15,69,922 7,72,46,906
Total 21,15,69,922 7,72,46,906 i
Trade receivables
Nigachem Migeria Limited 18,71,03,315 9.62,42,635 14,35,01,867
salar Explochem Zambia Limited “ 4,84,24,181 3,29,52,129
solar Patlayicl Maddeler Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anonim 27.66,32,627 34,43,27,507 32,36,51,424
Sirketi
Blastec (India) Private Limited 39,00,660 -
solar Mining Services {Pty) Limited 13,72,58,949 - -
Economic Explosives Limited - 3,24,16,739] ”
Blastec (India) Private Limited - 15,08, 848
Total 60,48,95,550 52,29,19,910 50,01,05,420
Trade payables/ Other payables
Solar Synthetics Private Limited 46,606 1,12,992 -
Economic Explosives Limited - 6,70,02,762
Emul Tek Private Limited 170,924 -
Shri %.N.Nuwal . #3,40,385 -
Shri Manish Nuwal - 4283277 -
Shri K.C. Nuwal - 38,62,270
Total 2,17,530 £,36,01,685 -
Guarantee given on behalf of subsidiary
Solar Overseas Mauritius Limited 1,02,13,08,750 1,04,34,37,500 65,61,97,500
Total 1,02,13,08,750 1,04,34,37,500 65,61,97,500

Mote 31: Segment Information

in accordance with paragraph 4 of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”, the Company has presented segmental
information only on the basis of the Consolidated financial statements (refer note no.oox of the Consolidated
financial statements).
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HNote 31: Fair Value Maasurements

The fair value of the financial assets and lizhiities b included at the amount at which the instrument could be eschanged in a cunrent tramsaction hetween willing parties, other than
irva forced o liquidation sale.

Thue ol icrwing rethads and assumptions were used o estimate the fair values:

1 The Company has not disclosed the fair vabues of financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, bank deposits; trade receivables, other financial assets
{ewcept derivatives) , trade payabbes, other financial liabilities (except derivatives), current borrowings, because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value,
Further, for firancial assets, the Company has taken into consideration the aliowances for expected credit losses and adjusted the carrying velues where applicable.

2 The Company has not disclosed the fair value of Investments in subsidiaries, since the same are valied at cost. For carrying walues refer note 4 of the financial statements.

3 bor fimanclal assets and liabilithes that are measured ot fair vadie, the carrying amounts are equal to the Fair valees.
The Campany holds derruative financial instraments to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally
4 bank or a financial institution. These desivative financial instruments are valised based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace. The valuation
technigues used to value these derivatives include forward pricing and swap models, using present value cabculations. These derlvatives are marked to market as on the valuation
date

5 The fair values for boars given were caboulated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rates and idividual credit worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this
evaluation, sllowances are taken to sccount for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair vabue of such instruments are not materlally different from their carrying
walues, They are classified as level 3 Bair values i the fair value hierarchy.

6 Fair values of the Comparvy’s inter est-bearing borrowings are determined by using discounted cash flow method using the current borrowing rates. The non-current borrowings are
classified as bevel 3 fair values in the fair value hisrarchy due 1o inclusion of uobsenable inputs including own credit risk. The own non-performance risk was assessed ta be
Ins|gnificant.

A. Falr Value Hierarchy

Liswd = Cobed peices [unadjusted] in active makets for identical assets or labiSities.
Lewel 7- Otivesr techmioues for whech all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fasr value are obserabde, either directly o indinectly,

Lewed 3- Technigues which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair valuse that are not based on obsenable market data.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories incheding the guantitative dischosure of fair valus rmeasurement hierarchy as ot March 31, 2017 i as follows:

Particulars Carrying Value Motes Cuoted prices in active | Significant observable| Significant unobservable
markets [Level 1) inputs gt
fLawel 2) fLeswel 3]
Financial assets
Amortised cost
Loans 1,600,540, T8, 204 5 180,90, T8, 204
Orther financial assets |except derivatives| 46,57,14,537 [ - -
Trade receivables 172,62 46965 7
Cash and cash pqualents 815,409,000 8
Bark balances ather than cash and cash eguialents 1,50,95,500 a8
Fadr value through profit or loss
Inestrnaent in eguity instruments of others 11,000,000 4 11,00,000
[unguoted)
Investment in Venture Capital Fund [unguoted) 3,31,18,355 a - 3,31L18,5955
Investrmant i equity instruments {quoted) 56,598,303 4 55,98, 303
Investrnent in mutual funds. 43,6962, 385 4 43,6862, 385 .
Derfvative Instraments 561,719,254 B 5,61,79.254
Totad Financial assets 4,53,10,42,712 44,25,60,688 8,92,97 809 1,61,00, 78,204
Finastial Lialdlities
Armortized cost
Borrowings
Miai-ciarent B0,30,31.350 12 - - B0,30,31,350
Currant O98,99, 90,004 13 -
Trade payables 40,38, 61,573 15
Oitheer financial liabilities 75,30,11.233 17 =
Fair Value through profit or loss
Deerivative Irsirisnents 4,27.37,650 17 - 4,27.37,650
Total Hnancial liabilities 2,99, 26,40,810 - 4,27,31,650 B0,30,31,350

Theere have been no transfers among Livel 1, Level 2 amid Level 3 during the period.
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The carrying waboe ard lair value of firarcisl mstnaments by categories inchading e quantitathes disclomunes of fair value messuremant hisrarchy as at

March 31, T016 is as fofoes:

Particulars Carrying Value [ Ouoted prices in Significant Sagaificant
actier markets. whisralie unohseruahle
[Lewel 1) Imputs Inputs
_eveldl | el ¥
Fmancial assets
Amoriised cost
L 1,618,796, 76T 5 * 1,E18, 796,767
e financial assets (evcepl dermalnos) A56, 608,155 ] -
Trade recsivalies 1523, 285,777 7 -
Cash and cash equivalents 22,103,109 a 3
Bank balances other than cash and cash equialents 41,141,483 L] . - -
vt e Gowernmen securitles. 30,0041 L] - 30,000 -
Falr Value through prodit or loss
I L i equily al prhars 1, 10000 4 1,104,000
{uniuated)
wesIEe in Yenbure Cagetal Fund [unauoted) A5438,347 L] - A5 A8 347
el i eouity instraments [auatedh 4 817,265 L &A27 265 =
et in el funds S0,M7, 712 4 50,707,712 -
Deriative Instrumants. 117,837 543 L] = 1782 543 -
& p_—
Total Financlal avsess 3,685, 8066,197 [ sssvaary || 16720580 | [1 616806767 |
Finncial Liskiigias
Amsartized cost
Borrowings
an-curnmer. 966,673,750 12 - 965,673, 760
Cumvent 567,882,915 18 ;
Trade payablen TTH,TES. XSS 15 5 =
rher lirarcial labilities H2A69,117 17 E -
Falr Value through predit o loss
Brerivathve nsiruments 106 93T 17 = 108,900,327 -
Total Hrancial labilities PRIl ETL] . 108,570,337 966,673,760

Thers hawe been no transfers among Leved 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period.

The carrying vahse s Tair valut of hiranclal instraments by categaries inchuding the quantitative. disclosures af fair value measuremen basrarchy as at

April 3, BO1S i5 as Iollows:

r!mtm Carrying Value Notes Chunstedd prices In significan Slgnificant
acthee markets abserabie anohyeraakie
FLawal 1] A In@uAs
[avel 2l lleweld] |
Fimancial assots
Amortised cost
Loans 1,096,247 499 5 - - 1,098,247 499
Other firaecisl asets (et derivatives) 187815217 & -
Trade recenables 1,437 281,830 7 -
Cask and cath equivalents 21,203.95% L] =
Bank Balarces other than cash and cash eousalents LB 664, 040 ] - -
Wreastmen In Governmaend seosities 30,000 L] 0,000
Fair Walue through profit or los
IfmpsrL el W ity Instrumenis of athirs EX ] a4 - 3,600,000
[unguotedi
Ivestmant in Venture Capital Furd {urguoted) 45, 008972 4 - 4502857 .
Irwestmant in equity Eetruments {quoted) 2268927 d 2 G652 T - -
Deerivative InSbrsnents E5,973,83% & - 65, 973850
Total Financial assets 3 2,266,527 | ¢ 111,032,811 [/71,009,847,499 |
X k
Fimmncial Lisbiiites
Amortised cost
Roaeoawings
Woe-rurroent THI 002 TAY 12 - THIOGT, PAL
Currant FINLDRS, 6 23
Trade payabie 506,776,639 15 = -
Ot Financial liabilities 199,462 009 17 = -
Fair Waluie thraugh profit ar loss
Dsrigarlive Insbruments 93,111,589 17 = 93.111.68% =
Total Financial - 93,211 08% | TE3 002 T41

There have been o Lrarsiers among Level 1, Level 2 snd Level 3 during the period,
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Note 33; Financial medlfﬁ:ﬂ_udpdkh

The: Company’s financial assets indudes loans, trade recevables, cash and cash equivalents that comes directly from jes
operations and financial liabilities comprises of borrowings, trade and ather payables, and financal guarantos contracts. it has an
integrated financial risk management system which proactively identifles monttars and Lakes precautionary and mitigation
measures in respect of various identified risks.,

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks, which evaduates and eerches independent controd over the entirg process of financlal risks, AN the
derbvative activities for risk Mmanagement purposes are managed by experienced teams. 1t & the Company's policy that na trading
In derivatives for speailative Purposes may be undertaken,

The following tabls mentions the risk the Compuany i exposed to and how it manages it

Risk Exposire arising from Measurerment Maning t
Market Rick- Interest rate risk 'f—:-—l_:' B = Sensitivity Analysis Intorest Rate Swaps
Recognized financial assets and )
. ? y Cash Flow Analysis Foreign-exchange
Market Risk-Foraign Exchange liabélities not dencminated in
i forward contracts
iR Sensitivity Analysis
Investment in Equity Securities
Market Risk- Equity price risk martual funds and wventure sensitivity Analysts Partlalio Diversification
capital fund
Cash and Cash equivalants, ARINg Analysis Hm_::inu I:lﬂa:: ;Mh
Credit Risk loans givan, trade receivables credit and Bank
. and investments Credit Analysis hu-r-nhae
. Availability of credit |
Liguidity Risk Borrowing, trade payables and Eash Flow forecasts limits and borrawing
ather financial Katilities facilitia

Market Risk

Market Risk i the risk that the future value of a financial instrurent will fiuctuate due to moves in the market factors. The mast
‘Comrn types of market risks inclsde
- interest rate risk,
faredgn currency risk and
- equity price risk.

Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments, The finance department undertakes management of
cash resaurces, hedging strategies for foreign curmency exposuras, Barrowing mechanism and ensuring compdiance with markst
risk limits,

Interest Kate Hisk

0.5% changes in interest rate will Incraase) decrease the borrowing cost by Rs 0.95 lags,

& Lompany does nol have significant investment in Bank Depasits and hence not significantly exposed to Interest rate
sensitivity,

Forsign Currancy Risk

Forelgn Currency risk is the risk thas the future earnings or fair values of future cash flows witl fucuste because of changes in
foreign exchange rates, The Cornpany aperates globally and portion of the Business is transacted in USD and Furp. The Coampany
Evahuates euchange rate exposure and manages it by using derivatives leke: Foreign-exchange forward contracts to hedge the
Toreign exchange risk.

Derhvative instrurments and unhedged foraign CUTeNCY expasuras
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&) Derivative cutstanding as at the reporting date
The Company has borrowings in forelgn currency amaunting to Rs. 1,81,75,96,022 (March 31, 2016: Rs. 1,51.75,16,742).

Accordingly, in ordor to hedge the foreign currency risk on these borrowings, the Company has taken foreign exchangs forward
COracEs, which are as follows:

Name of the instrument Currency March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
e TTRME of the INstrument March 31, 2016 |
Forward contract 1o buy uso 2,03,34,472 2,06,00,000

b) Unhedged foreign currency exposire as ot the reporting date:

In foreign currency

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
LIS EURD LISDy EURC

Trade Receivabie 1,15.11,663 L7576 93,37,822 173576
Loans and other receivable 47,53, 104 5 21,7357
|Borrowings 6,95 184 - jl,b-l,l_i_q

(Tracle Payabdes 41,751 A0 5E T

1% increase or decrease in fereign exchange rates will have the following impact an profit before tax:

In Rupess
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
uso 5543, 112 28,551,839
EURD 120653 1,259,870

Equity price risk
The Company’s investments in quoted equity shares and martual funds are sulbsject to market price risk arising from uncertainties

about future values of the invested securmties. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification. The portolic
reports are submitted to senior management on regular basks and the board of directors reviews and approves all investments.

Following are the dedails of investments which are subject to price risk:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 '
Investment in equity shares [quoted) 55,598,303 48,37 265
Investment in mutual funds 43,69 62, 384 507,07, N2

The impact of increases! decreases of the BSES MSE index on the Company's equity shares snd rutual funds and gain low for the
period woulkd be fis. 4,425,607 (March 31, 2006 R, 555,350}, The analysis is based on thie asUmption that the indes has
incroased by 1% or decreased by 1% with all other variables hald constant, and that all the Company’s investments having price
risk mowed in line with the index,

Credit risk

“Lrodit risk arises from the Poasibility that the counter party may not be able to setthe thelr obligatien as agreed. To manage this,
@ Lompany periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other Counter parties, taking into account the financial
candition, aurrent economic trends, and analysks of historical bad detits and ageng of financial assets, Individeal risk Bmits are
perodically reviewed on the basis of such Information.

Finandcial assets are written off when there ks no reasonalde expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
Fipayment plan with the Company, Where loans or recelvabies have beon written off, the Company continues to engage i
enfaroement activity ta attemgt to recover the receivahle due. Whire recoveries are made, these are recognised as income in
the statement of profit and loss.

Cash and cash equivalents and deposits: Balances and deposits with banks ara subjiect to fow credit risks due to good credit
ratings assigned to the banks.

Investments: The Campany limits its exposure to cradit risk by generally Investing in liquid securities and counterpartoes that have
a gorod credit ratings. This #roup does not expect any credit losses Tram non-parformance by thess countar jparties, and does ol
have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors.

Loans: The Company has given loans to associates and subsidiaries and certain uhrelated parties, However thers b no counter
party risk, Except in case of same non-current loans where arbitration preceeding are on-going and the Management believes
that this amount would be recowered in full however the timing of recovery is uncertain, (Hefer pote Ao, 5 of finandial statements
for details)
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Trade and other receivables:

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables and loans from individual customers based on histarical
trend, intdustry practices and the business emviarnment in which the entity operates. Loss rates ara Basard on actual credit loss

experience and past trends,

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provisions) has been considered from the date the imvoice falls dise:

Period Upto 50 days 6110120 da Maore than 120 | Total |
A5 at March 31 2017 1,05 48 a5 212 18, 35, 60,984 61,31, 35 742 1,881 938
As at March 31, 2005 78,04, 36,683 12,27.37,058 56, 34,89, 450 | 230
The following table summarizes the changes in the Provisions made for the recenables;
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Opening batance 14,33,77,453 12,76,31 644
Provided during the year 3,472,258 687 2,07 45 B{r
Amounts wiitten off - -
Rewersals of provisions {1,18,71,162)
[Closing balance 16,57,34,973 14,33,77,453 |
Mo significant changes in estimatson technigues ar assumptions were made during the reporting period.
Liuidity risk
Liquidity risk & the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obiligations on thme or at 2 reasonable price. The
Company's finance department B responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management and then pracesses related
o such risks are overseen by senior management through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cach flaws.
Maturity profile of financial Habilities
The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financal labilities at the reporting date
On derrand Less than 3 months 3 ta 12 months 1to5 * 5 years Total

March 31, 2017
Bomrowings

From related party 23,1%,68,922 - #1,15,69,922

From Banks 1765910 63,2648 606 B4,01,80,008 80,30,31,350 2,27,76,26,054
Trachis payables 38A4L,11,798 197487 - 40,38,61,57%
Other financial labilities 545627 1.50,96,738 L72,01,246 - 5,68,45,611
Derivative Instruments . 80,566,560 1,02,16,508 2.44,54,583 4,27,37,651
March 31, 2016
Borrowings

From related party 7,72, 46,5906 - - . 7,72 46,906

Frivm Banks 16,34,73,447 19,28,35 499 36,39,37 962 06,66, 73, T60 168,69, 20,667
Trade payabiles - 6, 26,046,806 161,82 q48 - TTR7.89, 254
Cther financis liabiliies 13,76578 34847630 1,66,34,011 - 5.28,58,219
Derivative Instruments - BA3427 1,13,50,937 9,67, 75,963 10,89,70,327
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MNote 34{a): Capital Management

For the purpose of Company’s capital management, capital includes issued share capital, share premium and all
other equity reserves, The primary objective of capital management is to maximise shareholder value. The
Company consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions and risk managements of the underlying assets.

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt.

march 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Met Debt 1,69,59,85,845 1,47,13,12,0B3 1,19,42,00,408
Equity 6,58,63,31,942 5,48,29,71,322 508,04, 99 988
Eapi-tal and net debt B 23523 17,787 b,95 42i33i405 552? 47 Qﬂi:'!g?
Gearing ratio 20% 211% 19%
Calculation of net debt is as follows:
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Borrowings
Non Current B0,30,31,350 96,66,73,760 78,30,02,741
Current 98,99,99,004 56,78,82.915 60,10,65,666
1,79,30,30,354 1,53,45,56,675 1,38,40,68,407
Cash and cash equivalents 8,19,49,010 2,21,03,109 2,12,03,959
Bank balances other than cash and cash 1,50,95,500 4,11,41,483 16,86,64,040
equivalents
9,70,44,509 6,32,44,592 18,98,67,999
Net Debt 1,69,59,85,845 1,47,13,12,083 1,19,42,00,408

Note 34(b): Research & Development Expenditure:

1. Capital Expenditure incurred on R&D is included in Fixed Assets and depreciation is provided on the same at

the respective applicable rates.

2. Revenue expenditure incurred on R&D has been included in the respective account heads in the statement of

Accounts.

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
In the nature of Revenue Expenditure 2,89,09,457 2,38,94,010
In the nature of Capital Expenditure 1,43,35,089 62,086,742
Total 4 32544.545 3501 00,752
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Al

Al.1

A.1.3

Al

A1

Mote 35: First- time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year anded March 31, 2017, are the first the Company has prepared In accordance with Ind AS. For
periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2015, the Group prepared its financial statemants in accardance with accounting
standards notified under section 132 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAF)

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind A5 applicable for periods ending on March 31,
2017, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016, as described in the summary of
significant accounting policies, In preparing these financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at April
1, 2015, the Campany's date of transition to ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its
Ingian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheat as at April 1, 2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year
ended March 31, 2016,

Exemptions and exceptions apphied

Ind A% 101 aliows first- time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requiraments under ind AS. The
Company has applied the following exemptions

ind AS optional exemptions

Business Combinations (ind AS 103)

Ind AS 101 provides the option to apply Ind AS 103, prospectively fram the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition
date, This provides relief from full retrospective application that would require restatement of all business combinations prior to the
transition date.

The Company elected to apply Ind A5 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its transition date. Business
combinations accurring prior to the transition date have not been restated. The Company has applied same exemption for investmant
in associates.

Deemed cost

ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect ta continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as
recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its
deamed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabdlities.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their pervious GAAP carrying value.

Use of deemed cost for investments in subsidiaries and associates

ind AS 101 permits & first-time adopter to elect to continue the previous GAAF carrying amount at the date of transition and use that as
its deemved cost of investment as at the date of transition.

Accardingly, the Company has elected to measure ail Its Investments in subsidiaries and assoclates at their previous GAAP carmying
wvalus,

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimatas

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind A5t as at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the
same date in accordance with previous GAAP {after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimates were in erfor.

ind A5 astimatas as at April 1, 2015 are consistent with the astimates as at the same date made in confarmity with previous GAAP. The
Company made estimates for following ftems in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under
Indian GAAP:

Investrment in equity instruments carried at FYPL or FYOCE; and

Imipairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

Reconchllations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

The fellowing reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from Previous
GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101:

~ equity as at April 1, 2005,

= equity as at March 31, 2016;

- total comprehensive income for the vear ended March 31, 2016; and
- explanation of material adjustments to cash flow statements

in the reconciliations mentioned abowe, certain reclassifications have bean made to Previous GAAP financial infarmation to align with

the Ind AS presentation.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{all amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 1

Reconciliation of other equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015

Particulars Notes to first- | March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015
time ad n

Other equity as per Indian GAAP 3 5,677,537,045 i 5,055,056,494
Adjustments: s -

Fair valuation of mutual fund and equity 1 ! 18,745,655 % 8,881,310

investments = e

Fair valuation of derivatives 2 [3._ 8,857,217 | \ (27,237,850)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade 3 .{"" (67,791,192} « (79,662,354)

receivables

Proposed dividend and related taxes 4 5 - N 196,041,064

Tax effects of adjustments 5 {; (335,357,512){ .~ (253,558,786)
Total adjustments (375,545,832) (155,536,616)
Total equity as per ind AS ‘; 5,301,991,213 } 4,899,519,878

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016

Particulars Motes to first- | March 31, 2016
time adoption

Profit after tax as per Indian GAAP A 1,112,585,017
Adjustments: ‘\, =

Fair valuation of mutual fund and eguity 1 9,864,345

inmvestments -

Fair valuation of derivatives 2 " 136,095,067

Provision for expected credit losses on trade 3 < 11,871,162

receivables i

Tax effects of adjustments 5 . (81,798,726)
Total adjustments (23,968,152)
Profit after tax as per Ind AS { " 1,088,615,865
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income as per ind AS 1,088,616,865

MNotes to first-time adoption:

Fair valuation of mutual fund and equity investments

Under Ind A5, investments in eguity instruments (other than investments in subsidiaries) and mutual funds
are required to be measured at fair value, The resulting fair value changes of these investments have been
recognised in retained sarnings as at the date of transition and subsequently in the profit or loss for the year

ended March 31, 2016.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 2

Note 3

Mote 4

Note 5

Mote &

MNote 8

Fair valuation of derivatives

Under Ind AS, derivatives which are not designated as hedging instruments are fair valued with resulting
changes being recognised in profit or loss. The impact in equity and profit is on account of fair valuation of
forward foreign exchange contracts,

Trade receivables

As per Ind AS 108, the Company is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognising the

allowance for doubtful debts. Consequently, the total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015
decreased and profit for the year ended March 31, 2016 has also been decreased

Proposed dividend

Under Ind AS, dividends are recognised when the same is approved by the shareholders in the general
meeting. Accordingly, the liability for proposed dividend included under provisions has been reversed with
corresponding adjustment to retained eamings. Consequently, the total equity has been increased.

Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which fecuses on
differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to
account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base, The application of
ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differances which was not
required under Indian GAAP.

Alsa, deferred tax have been recognised on the adjustments made on transition to Ind AS.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings as at April 1, 2015 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition
adjustments.

Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for
the peried, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. lteme of income and expanse that are not
recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as "other comprehensive
income' includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did
not exist under previous GAAP. Eurther the Comapny has recanciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to total
comprehensive income as per Ind AS,

Statement of cash flows
The Ind AS adjustments are either non cash adjustments or are regrouping among the cash flows from

operating, Investing and financing activities. Consequently, Ind AS adoption has no impact on the net cash
flow for the year ended March 31, 2016 as compared with the previous GAAP.

Discount and incentives directly relatable to revenue

Under previous GAAP, the discounts and incentives on sales were shown as other expenses. Under Ind AS,
these are required to be netted off against revenue, There is no impact on the total equity and profit,




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36: Disclosure in respect of Specified Bank Notes held and transacted:

specified Bank Notes | Other denomination Total
(SBNs) notes
Closing cash in hand as on Nov 08, 2016 24,78,000 37,78,374 62,56,374
{+) Permitted receipts % - .
(-] Permitted payments &
(-] Amount deposited in banks 24,778,000 -
Closing cash in hand as on Dec 30, 2016 - » 5

specified Bank Notes (SBNs) is defined as Bank Notes of denominations of the existing series of the value of five hundred rupees and one

thousand rupees.

The disclosures with respect to * Permitted receipts' , "Permitted payments', "Amount deposited in Banks' and 'Closing Cash in Hand as on

Dec 30, 2016 is understood to be applicable in case of SBN's only.

= Note 37; Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under The Micro, 5Small and Medium Enterprises Development

(MSMED) Act, 2006:

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015

Principal amount outstanding (whether due or not) to micro and
small enterprises

Interest due thereon -
The amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section -
16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during
each accounting year

The amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment [which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act, 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end -
of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succedding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMED Act, 2006

3,75,21,709

3,11,56,863

3,45,99,796

Az per our report of even date attached
For Gandhi Rathi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's tstration Mumber: 103031W

@mﬁf“ﬁ -

C. N7 Rathi S.N.N

Partner Chairman &

Membership No. 39895 Executi rm!-f.h::rrﬁd
LN

Place: Nagpur Khus Pasari

Date: May 29, 2017 Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Solar Industries India Limited

\P/(\."Ww

_—————____"

Manish Nuwal
Managing Director &
CEO

N .Y
@
Nilesh Panpaliya
Chief Financial Officer




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
SOLAR INDUSTRIES INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated financial statements

1

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Solar Industries India Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group'), comprising of the consclidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
[hereinafter referred to as ‘the consolidated financial statements’} .

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to
as “the Act") that gives a true and fair view of the consoclidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies: making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for

the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are reguired to be included in the audit report

under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.




We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative proncuncements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with
ethical requirernents and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the consolidated financial statementsare free from materialmisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial
staternents that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of

Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph 8 of the Other Matters paragraph
below, other than the unaudited financial statements as certified by the management and referred to
in sub-paragraph 9 of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of report of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2017, and their consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and their consolidated cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

8.

We did not audit the financial staternents of certain subsidiaries included in conseclidated financial
statements which constitute total assets of Rs396.86 crore as at March 31, 2017, total revenue of
Rs 354.08 crore, net profit of RS{EE.IS crore and net cash outflow amounting to Rs .42 crore for the
year ended on that date. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports are being furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of section 143 (3) of the Act, insofar as it relates to the

aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.




10.

Certain of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries
and which has been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards
applicable in their respective countries. The Company's management has converted the financial
statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted
in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our opinion in so
far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the
report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the
Company.

We did not audit the financial statements/ consolidated financial statements of certain subsidiaries
included in consolidated financial statements which constitute total assets of Rs! 17.53 crore as at
March 31, 2017, total revenue of Rs'0.43 crore, net profit of Rs;.[1.35] crore and net cash inflow
amounting to Rs' 1.44 crore for the year ended on that date. These financial statements are
unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures in respect of these
subsidiaries and our repert in terms of section 143 (3) of the Act in so far as it relates to the

aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited financial statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management.

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these consolidated financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the years ended
March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an
unmodified opinion dated May 16, 2016 and May 25, 2015 respectively. The adjustments to those
financial statements for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company on

transition to Ind AS have been audited by us.

Our epinion is not gualified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements

11.

As required by Section 143 (3] of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiary companies, referred in the
‘Other Matters’ paragraph above, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including

other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of



the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company and of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, as on March 21, 2017 taken
on record by the respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the subsidiary
companies, none of the directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India is
disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in
India, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A" to this report.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at
March 31, 2017 on its financial position in its consolidated financial statements.

The Company has long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were no material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. The clause is not

applicable to the subsidiaries companies.

The Holding Company has provided requisite disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements as regards the holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 of the Group entities as
applicable on the basis of information available with the respective Group entities.
Based on audit procedures performed and the representations provided to us by the
management we report that the disclosures are in accordance with the relevant books
of account maintained by those entities for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and as produced to us by the management of the
respective Group entities.

For Gandhi Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

%ﬂ:jn MNumber: 103031W

C.N. Rathi

Partner

Membership No. 39895

Place: Nagpur

Date: May 29, 2017




“Annexure A" red to in the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the consolidated financial
statements of Solar Industries India Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

1.

We  have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
Solar Industries India Limited |“hereinafter referred to as the Holding Company “) and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, as at March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are
incorporated in India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India, considering the essential compeonents of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) [‘the Guidance Note’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote and the 5tandards on Auditing as
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note reqguire that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls

operated effectively in all material respects.

Clur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding

Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6.

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

a. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

b. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

& provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
fraud or error may cccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

in our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the
intarnal contral aver financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies, considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For Gandhi Rathi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 103031W

Place: Nagpur

C.N. Rathi
Partner
Membership No. 39895

Date: May 29, 2017



tar industries India Limited
solidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017
(adl amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilithes
Financial Liabiities

Balance Sheet as at Motes|  March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 |
|ASSETS
Mon-current asiets 5 e ;
Property, plant and equipment 3 © 7,69,69,78,036.65 Y 5,97,73,73,388.47 | 5795480 74118
Capital work-in-progress 2 “ 80925476130 30,44,36.688.12 -~ 41,36,87,379.23
Intangible Assets L B,13,66,99575 ¢ 5,05,20,704.75 “4,00.27,437.50
Financial assets =
Investmants 4 “'3,50,41,544,.46 ©9,17,36,986 87 " 8,61,58,969.50
Loans 5 €76.30,42,332 57 < 72,05,28,228 85 73,78,02,598 85
Other financial assets [ <725,48,04,821.41 ~17,93,69,790.53 ~14,05,81,970.16
Deferred tax assets L] < 5,56,75456,00 < 1.28,01,044 25 =
Currant tax net) . 2,1579,828.79 { 12,2556,973.31 <31:81,76,433.40
Other non-current assets 10 16,35,52,725.10 % 18,56,29,755.51 ~T19,63,17,927 58
Total non-current assets 9,98,16,96,502,04 8,64,49,53 560.65 7,73,01,42 457.40
rrent assets
imventorses 11 €1,81,07,23,064 30 < 1,59,85,57,064 83 «"1,60,99,01,974.22
Financial assets
Investments 4 ¢ 49,74,77,907.04 < 30,92,29,587.25 { 32,3394 38227
Trade receivables 7 | <3.1376,22,640.56 £72.70,98,48,506. 51 1,15,24,91,356.28
Cash and cash equivalents B < 15,93,33.470.47 £75,43,97,619.18 ¢ 14,61,11,689.24
Bank balances other than above ] % 13,45,63,775.70 *'11,27,34,288 66 ¢ 22,38,22999.22
Loans 5 " 26,77,75,391.21 ¢ 39,46,75,113.46 «31,99,29,381.59
Other financial sssets G < -18,705,.28 < B1,06,17,946.31 (53,97,28,692.41
Orther current assets 10 54,47,21,81892 “ “50,00,04,209.76 (33.3.3,]‘0.5?1.00
Total current assets § 7.7 348 | < BAS,006443576 | 569875104624
Total assets 1552 | 15135017.99781 | 1342889350363
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity - :
Equity share capital 12 { 18,00,80,110.00 ~18,09,80,110.00 ©18,08,80,110.00
|other aquity «9,10,48,84,057.53 (787346106048 | ©717,50,21,596.77
Tatal squity  5,8,58,64,167.53 *. 8,08 44 41,170.48 7 706.77
Mon Controling Interast £ 90,25,75,476.48 = 47.80,32,73017 | <, 38,02,08.30022

% 1,34,71,22.045.17

s par our report of even date attached
|For Gandhi Rathi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 103031wW

C, M. Rathi
Partner
hMembership No 39885

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalane financial statermnents

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Salar industries india Lirnited

G~
5.M. Nembval

Chairmpeam &
Exec Director
,.f}
ode
Khu Pasari
Company Secratary

Borrowings 13 | S 147.9559,783.45 “~1,55,80,44,129.63
Dafarrad tax liabilities 14 [ Bi,NjE,.ESI?.ZS “¥7.64,33,082.51 T 56,2,5.3-5.!31_25
Total nan-current liabilities 31,96 .68 2,12,35,55,127.68 2,12,03,83 060,89
Current Habilities
Financial liabilities . F. -

Barrowings 13 2,63,27,08,749.74 " 2,08,95,75,830.29 € 1,72,19,78,112.90

Trade payables 15 t 92,72,08,873.24 4.08,03,27,347.03 75,65,22,243.79

Other financial Habikities 16 | < 1,14.94,82,508.96 —87,06,98,471.01 §72,32,79,363.53

Current tax {net} € 1,40,26,139.00 _ - e .
Other current liabilities 17 | o 48,6522,679.80 < A3,83,87,320.75 ¥ 37,05,2571353
Total current labilities " 5,20,99,49,950.83 <4 08 - 3,57,23,05,434.75
Total liabiiities 5 1.51 096,76 ] 5,64
Total squity and labilities A7,21,8033.27552 | 15,35007997.01 ] 13,42,88,93,503.63

|5ummary of significant aecounting policies 2

uwal =
Managing Directar
% CEO

L]

e

Chief Financial Officer




Solar Industries India Limited

{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

As per our report of even date attached
For Gandhi Rathi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 103031W

C.N. Rathi
Partner
Membership No.39895

Place: Nagpur
Date; May 29, 2017

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

Statement of Profit and Loss for the MNotes Year ended Year ended
March31, 2017 |  March31 2016 |

Continuing operations e

Revenue from operations 18 € 17,11,28,25,170.61 *15,74,01,56,712.42
Other income 19 '_.-""" 13,21,13,697.54 13,24,72,872.88
Total income 17,24,49,38 15 LSQ 7,26,29,585.30
|Expenses y

Cost of materials consurmed 20 (a) f 9,03,24,69,133.43 8,56,78,31,191.55
Purchases of Traded Goods " 20,43,58,391.00 { 14,66,08,753.58
Changes in inventories of wark-in-progress, stock-in-trade and 20 (b) ~T117,17.58.186.16) 5,25.40,982.62
finished goods

Excise duty k 1.31,29,06,103.37 1,25,39,04,940.12
Employee benefit expense 21 < 1,04,31,20,505.67 ¢ B87,63,08,049.53
Depreciation expense < 38,74,37,675.16 « 32,81,70,646.70
Other expenses 22 ¢ 2,85,27,71,565.02 ¢ 1,80,05,23,152.24
Finance costs 23 & “26,89,37,035.43 ¢ 20,43,79,635.06
Total expenses <145 42 91 N %%!s?!;sig
Profit before tax ¢ 2,71,46,96,645.24 . 2,64,23,62,233.90

ax expense ! 24 .

- Current tax ©°70,48,79,208.12 < 71,32,03,000.80
- Deferred tax « 6,25 18,592.56 < 15,41,50571.10
Total tax expense « 76,73,97,800.68 86,73,93,571.90
Profit for the year 1,94,72,98,844.56 . 1,77,49,68,662.00
Other comprehensive income

ftems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations “ [1,69,24,575.00) .
Tax relating to these items ¢ 58,57,595.00

Total Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax £ [1,10,66,980.00) -
Total comprehensive income for the year . 1,93,62,31,864.56 ' 1,77,49,68,662.00
Earnings per equity share

Less: Minority Interest 'E,IE,B‘J,MS.H b 13,84 31,650.92
Net Profit after Minority Interest 1,85,43,32,818.73 1,63,65,37,011.08
Basic and Diluted earnings per share 25 20.49 18.09
[Mominal value of Rs. 2 each (Previous vear : Rs.10) |

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

Fer and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Solar Industries India Limited

Chairman &
Ex

Director

4o

Kh Pasari
Company Secretary

/4%_%

G
—_—
5.M. Ndwal Manish Nuwal

Managing Director
& CEO .

C
Milesh Panpaliyva
Chief Financial Officer




Solar Industries India Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year anded March 31, w017
(AN amounts in Rupees, unlbess otherwise stated)

Yoar ended

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments Tor:
Minority Interest
Dupreciation expente
Gadn on disposal of property, plant and equigment

Prafit on sabe of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
Dividend and interest income
Finance costs
Remeasurements of past-employment benefit obligations
Other Adjustments
Impalrment an property plant and eguipment
Impalrment loss on Financial Assets
Foreign Exchange & Other
Opevating profit before working capital changes

Adjustrents for:
(Increase)f decrease in trade receivables
[Increaself decrease in Inventories
{Decrease]/ Increase in trade payables
{Increase) In other financial assets
{Increase) in current tax assets (net)
[Increase) in other assets current
[Increase} in other assets non current
[Decrease)/ Increase in other current labilities
(Increase) by other Tinancial llabdines.

Increase In current tax liability (net)

Cash generated from operations

Income tawes and other taxes

Met cash inflow from oporating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Procesds from sale of proparty, plant and equigment

Loans repaid/ {given)

Loans repaid/ (given) Non Current

Purchase f{Proceeds from sale) of current investments
Proceeds from salef (purchase) of non- current investments
{Imvestment in)/Proceeds from Fined Deposit

Dividend and interest recebsead

Profit on sale of financial axsets carried at fair value through profit or lass
Goodwill

Increase in Deferred tax Linbility

Met cash outflow from investing activities

Net gain on financial assets mandatority measured at fair value through profit or loss

( 2,71,46,96,645.24

¢ {7,54,57,253.90)
©38,74,37,675.16

< (495,800.72)
% [2,00,88,402.05)
£ [2,86,40,450.45)

<7,23,06,243.07
< 26,89,37.035.43
. 11,10,66,980.00)

< 6527,889.75
.-7,98,19,790.25
5 (40,50,86,415.41)

Year ended

b O64,73.62,237 64

€ 9787949855
 32,81,70,646.70
¢110.62,497.12)
<{37,22,884.12)
“11,13,31,603.01)
<'7,37,40,706.37

© 20,43,79,635.06

 7.91,12,419.51
< [25,19,52,016.36)

. 2,98,8889976.36

©. 3,15,75.25118.62

£ (49,27, 73,380.70)
“{11,21,65,999.47)
#115,31,18,473.79)
|16,55,50,172.35)

< (4,47,17 609.16)
< 2:16,77,030.41
< 481,35.350.13

/ 80,76,59.837.14

“ {63,39,69,673.08)
<71,13,44,900.33

¢ 32,38,05,103.24
<[6,33,01,278.77)

< (11,66,33,638.76)

£1,06,88 172.07
& 6,7861,607.22
Tf 14,49,78,181.29

< 2,39,30,36,567.58

© 2,90,22,98,501.23

Fi

© 63,16,18,114.19

O« 45,94,81,004 81

_.’,..-l"'

1.1,76,14,18,453.39

" 2,83,28,17,496.42

£ 11.72,13.33.376.89)
“34,40,891.33
B, 24,98, 468,53

(16,81,59,917.74)
©8,37,62,153.0%
12,18,29,487 0a)|
AT.23,06,242.07)
ST,86,40,450.45
13,0846, 791.00)

1,41,90,41, 381, 10y
[ 1,93,00,270.33
<15,74,71,361.87)

' 1,78.87.578.43

| (80,78,017.35)
11,10,88,710.56
737,40, 746.37)
¢ 1,1%,31,603.00

195,93, 267, 25)

' (1,85,61,33,352.40)

~[1,40,83,15,511 61)




Solar Industries indla Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year anded March 31, 2017
(Al amounts in Rupees, unless otharwise stated)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from/f{Repayment of) non current borrowings
Proceeds from current borrowings

Interest paid

Fair value changes on derivatives not designated as hedges
Dividends paid

Tax on Dividend

Minarity Interest

MNet cash inflow) {outflow) from financing activities

Met increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Add:-Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

-
€ 12,40,77,230.04
f._'?,q,31,33,919.-|5

(20,25,61,576.27)
€ 36,75,97,716.29

{ [26,89,37,035.43] o120,43,79,635 06)
10,99,082 00 e 15,22,95,378.00)
{18,080, 1 10.00) ~157,00,69,147.00)
13,68,43,300.00) o [11,50,56,344.00)

< T8,18,99,045 83) 113,84,31,650.92)
¢ 8,96,50,750.23 * 91,62,16,054.85)

« 49,35.851,27
€ 25,43,97,619.18

" 10,82,85,929.95
© 14,61,11,689,24

{ 25,93,33,470.40

" 25,43,97 619,19

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standabone financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Gandhi Rathi & Co.

Charterad Accountants

Firm's Ragistration Murmber: 103031W

C.N. Rathi
Partner
Membership Mo, 39895

Place | Nagpur
Date: May 29, 2017

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors of

Solar industries India Limited

gl 'iiaB

5N Muwal
Chairman &
E ive Directar

Cqmpany Secretary

Manish Nuwal
Managing Director &
CEQ

N

v

Chief Fimanckal Qfficer




c0.=5

S9°D6L EGY 1SE'8 | LT OEL LE0BLY _| 6V OO0 19V ELTL | TesTes 05 Ze1] | 12 E_ = | SE090WPEDEB T, | EO° BV 9T0Z 'T€ (pIuy 3= ouejeg
- , 4 7 7 ;
OOSFT'PO9 00EPT'P09 . i | ST ou soN) ¥a 1 Inw3 Jo uonsinkoy
loorsas'as’es) 00'S96'85T £E) » (00'S96"85T'EE) ST-FI0T Ad §O PUBPIAIQ WO ¥E)
(D0'660° 288 9T 5 looree0’ 788 198 > (D0'660° 78S T9T] ST-FT0T Ad 50 puapng
loo'eTy L68'28) loo'eTv'L68" 28] > (oo'sTy'168'78) 2 ST-STOT Ad IO PUSDIALK] WYL WO NBL
(00'8F0"LOT'L 5 lDo'8v0’L0T" LO¥) 3 (00 BP0 LOT L0F) 9T-STOT Ad 40 SPUBRIAIG Wiisau|
25 o CERBUMO YA SUDORSURI]
SUCRERID
{ee'ses'otr'eszl B |(e6'TZ'z0s'0or) > |(Te'595°805 252) (1¥595'805'252h - uBi3i0) jo UOHRFURE UG SaIUAIBYIP BuRYg
iooao0'oo0‘ose] . Eun.aE,Sb% - z loo'o00’000'05L) | FIBTA [RIBUSE OF JajSURLL
00'000'000°05L 00'000°000'05L > 00'000'000°0sL . - / SBUPISED PaUIEIa] WLy JSSURL]
(00009 Lt loco0e’sely . (ooroos'Le)” FLUSIU BABLALRIOWOD A0
00'799'896'%LL'T | T6'0SI'IEV'BET | BO'TTOEES 9E9'T 3 S0TIO mm‘mmmmw Jwak a3 S0y 0.y
66°L6B'YTT'SSS'L | TTTOE'E0T'08E LL96S' TTOSLT L - LE'EBS'B66'YD Eiﬂﬂn\.w. 00'SBE'EIE'EIT) E.Ea.g.aﬂ@ E0ErY IS TSN T Py
i P J J 7 SV Pl 48 STOZ ‘T judy 3= scuney
& 3 TrE ON TN JEET]
[lezsro'oroveid  |(Stpoo'zTZ'Tel ¥ |lzewrvize aor DO EvS'E09'DT > . 00SLBTTZOST 7 [lzezes'eva'ses) » - uopdope awp 355y Uo BUBWLENR[pE Sy puj
STLYE'YIT'6P0'S | L9'SOE'STV'TLY. | 65 THO'SWE'LIS'L T 0FY'SEE'TF TTPOV'99E'sTET | | 00DTSDST'L ESEPD'TII'S0L'E | EOERO'TEZTEN'T ., STO0Z 1 |ady uo sy sauseg
- J ii — pr e =
J sompqen B O SpuUBLIaE)E
" Wauag pauyep Py UBSEY [RIBUID ansnsay [Eypde sdujusee paupelay
oy Bupejsues winpuasd BRI
Lt o O JUBLBINTES WY
LT Aynba seyio ol Uo FEOURIBYIP
Bujpjjesiue) uey
!!.._!__uam
[T
aapsusyasdiio] snjdins pue saasesay
B0
Aynke seyy0 g
DOOTI 086081 . | 005500606 - LT0Z 'TE 451N 38 5y
o
= 00'FFO'ZEETL 4 o jeypdes aseys Aynba U selurys
\
= 00 TI0 86081 STOC 'TE [Pauiy 38 5y |
i - T~ [eyden aueys Apnba uy safuey)
0O'0TT086'08T. 00 TT0'860°8T -~ STOT T udy Je sy
UGy TIngS Jo ON faoN

eydes sseys Aynbg 'y

(Peaeys aspvuByo ssajun ‘seadny uj SIUNOWR |y)

Aynba uy SBURYD JO JUISLSIEIS PRIEPIOSLOT
PEIWI] Bipu] SBLISNPL)| Jejog



LTOT ‘6T Aoy tageq
ancdiBepy (s0e 4

180140 [epuRuld 3D Aseyames Auediios
¥ 0
9 o
qu{._hgx G.,.OJ

oI w FLR T 3
o338 Fuideuspy UBLLIRL)
o . [RmnN ymuew AN NS
s e =
{,\CQ\QC — Nl @
) ' ;ﬁmnmcm”EF-:ZnnmE [Bay ¥ W4
g:nu.qvuht!n

PR Bjpu) sBuISNpU| JEjo5 a0 P 1Y YpuRD 4oy
O SIORSU] JO pIRDg BYL O RS LD puE Joq PEUDELE S1EP UBAS 0 Liods JNo Jad 5y

- T8 €66 565 T65 | 1L ¥ - | OOWES {96 €91 {59696 BOL m...-.

SHEGEON diysiaquay
Jauing
ey

TOPES'6SY L0S'6. | BV 9LV'S.LS ) L £ I® eousjeg

{looooe‘Eva"aE) - (00 D0E ‘78 'SE) % . - - {o0o0Eere'9E] 5 - LT-9TOZ Ad 4O PUSPIA0 WIBRU]| UD KE]
6L 979’015 E ) E.Hm.ﬁm_mﬂ\v looott'oss'cRt) . . - - - ioootT'oss ‘08Tl 1, s LT-9T0Z Ad 4o spUaping i)
2 - e ; ! SIBUMO Y3 SUDIORIUR]
SUOIRID|
([ZrLTTT6'6T5)Y  |lELT9L'STRVET) _E.Zﬂﬁqmﬁ_\v - (69 TTr'sB0'S0v) - - ufijauny Jo UONESURL LD SEOLREYD sBurLDNg
looesa'sTT'saLls . — __E.mmm...mﬂﬁ._m.m_lh,,-\.._ 2 - == (oorese’Ez T 6oL AR [RIBUAS O] JRgSURIY
OO'ES'ERT 6L - DO'ESA'EZTEEL . - Sdﬂ.ﬂﬂmu\? x - $BujLIES PaUBIA) Wodj JjsuR
wﬂ-ﬁhﬁmm‘ﬁwﬂ E8'SPO'E68'TE . | ELSBTE'ZEE'YSE'T ,|(0008s'990'TIL~" = - EL'85.'66E'598 Jeah auy 1oy Jgoud
> i it . \\ﬁ,
99 SEE | LTOEL v | GYO90'ISVELRL | - 651 Z8T), | TZVOVSSESLSE 5 | DOVES L9669 5 |5 Iy
A TR0 UATRTE] - - e
J ® JO FUSWaELS
" Hyauaq pauysp i BuRtay [ERLRD sasBsay |sydel slujuies pauEiey
ssaangu) 10 wewainssswey | TP IunmsUR] WP -
(LT Sumorwos uoy Aunba Jeyio pejo) UD SEIUBIBIP
sfueyxy
L]
snpsusysidwo] FNAINS PuUR SBAIESEY
P le]

[Pedms BsMIBAI0 S58jun "seedny U] SJUNOLIE [Ty]
Aynba uy saBueyD Jo JUsWEEIS pRIEPI|OEUOY
PRURUN Bipay $RLMPLY 19|05



Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements
For the vear ended March 31, 2017

Note 1: Corporate Information

Solar Industries India Limited (the '‘Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated in
Nagpur. The Company has been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act and its equity shares
are listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in India. These consolidated
financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (referred to collectively as the ‘Group’) and the
Group's interest in associates. The Group is primarily involved in manufacturing of complete range of industrial
explosives and explosive initiating devices. It manufactures various types of packaged emulsion explosives, bulk
explosives and explosive initiating systems.

Mote 2: Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.2

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments and initial recognition of assets acquired under business
combinations which have been measured at fair value, The accounting policies are consistently applied by the
Group during the year and are consistent with those used in the previous year except for the changes in
accounting policies required to be made on adeption of Indian Accounting Standards notified under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Group’'s consolidated financial statements up to and for the year ended 31 March 2016 were prepared In
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2008, notified under Section 133 of the Act and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

As these are the Group's first consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting 5Standards has been
applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Group is provided in Note 34,

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in Schedule Il to the Act.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at March 31, 2017.




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its invelvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Non-controlling interests (NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and
any related NCl and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at
fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,

Equity accounted investees

The Group's interests in equity accounted investees comprise interests in associates. An associate is an entity
in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the financial and operating
policies.

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method, They are initially recognised at cost which
includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the
Group's share of profit or loss and OCI of equity-accounted investees until the date on which significant
influence ceases,

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and

other events in similar circumstances and necessary adjustments required for deviations, if any, are made in
the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements are presented in the same
manner as the Company’s separate financial statements.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same
reporting date as of the Company.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements
Far the year ended March 31, 2017

2.3 summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of year. Although these estimates are based on
the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the assat to jts
werking condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price. Capital work-in-progress includes cost of Property, Plant and Equipment that are not ready to
be put to use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and remaoving the itern and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book value only if
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group. All other expenses
on existing Property, Plant and Equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost
of replacing parts, are charged to the staterment of profit and loss for the period / year during which such
expenses are incurred.

Gains or losses arising from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss when the asset is disposed.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including software licenses of enduring nature and contractual rights acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amertization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use,

Gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the asset is disposed.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided using the Straight Line Method ('SLM’) over the
useful lives of the assets estimated by the management.




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

The management estimates the useful lives for the Property, Plant and Equipment as follows:

 Assets Group’s estimate of Useful life as prescribed
| useful life (years) under schedule Il (years)
| Buildings: '
Factory buildings ¥ 10030 =
Other buildings . 1010 60 | 60
Roads (RCC and WEBM) (151030 . <51010
Plant and Machinery: o ' _ '
Factary Plant and Machinery including KP | ¢ S5w25 ¢ 151020
Machinery
= Wind mill ¢ 22 22
iz  Electrical installat_inr'l__a nd Lab equipment 710 10
Bulk Deliver System (BDS) LE 8
Furniture and fixtures ¢ 5told i L 10
| Vehicles including Pump Trucks Al T U810
| Office equipment’s and Computers ~3to6 | < 3tob |

The management has estimated, supported by independent assessment by professionals, the useful lives of
the above classes of assets,

e. Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and other intangible assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors.

An impairment loss is racognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the
asset.

f. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

g. Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as per the provisions of Ind AS 103-
Business combinations.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities incurred or
assumed on the date of acquisition, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. The cost of
acquisition also includes the fair value of contingent consideration, if any. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair value
on the date of acquisition.

Transaction costs that the Sroup incurs in connection with a business combinations are expensed as incurre;




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

h.

Goodwillf Capital Reserve

Goodwill represents the cost of business acquisition in excess of the Group's interest in the net fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. When the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired exceeds the cost of business acquisition, a gain
is recognized in the other comprehensive income as capital reserve. Goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Leases
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease,

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other
elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is impracticable to
separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal to the fair
value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance cost on
the liability is recognised using the incremental borrowing rate

Where the Group is a lessee

Leases that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group are classified
as finance leases.

Finance leases are capitalized at the lower of the inception date fair value of the leased assets and the present
value of the minimum lease payments.

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
item, are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss as per the terms of
the lease agreements.

Financial instruments
i} Investments and other financial assets
Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and
+ those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the Company's business maodel for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.




Solar Industries India Limited
MNotes to Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended March 31, 2017

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through the Profit and Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

A. Debtinstruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’'s business model for

managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt
instruments into following categories:

1. Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using effective interast rate method.

2. Fair value through profit and loss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria of amortised cost are measured at fair value through Profit and
Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

B. Equity instruments:

The Company measures its equity investment other than in subsidiaries and associates at fair value
through profit and loss. However where the Company’s management makes an imevocable choice on
initial recognition to present fair value gains and losses on specific equity Investments in other
comprehensive income (currently no such choice made), there is no subsequent reclassification, on
sale or otherwise, of fair value gains to the statement of profit and loss.

ii) Financial liabilities
Classification

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:

= those to be measured subsequently at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, and
= those measured at amortised cost

Measurement

A. Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by borrowings, trade and other payables are
initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost.

B. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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iii} Forward exchange contracts not intended for trading or speculation purposes, classified as derivative
financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subseguently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.
iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
less on financial assets. The Company measures the ECL associated with its assets based on historical
trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the entity operates or any other
appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based
on its historically observed default rates over the expected |ife of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L.

k. Rewvenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 18 issued by the ICAI, the Group has assumed that recovery of
excise duty flows to the group on its own account. This is for the reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer
which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the goods are sold or not. Since the
recovery of excise duty flows to the group on its own account, revenue includes excise duty only.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.
i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue from the sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates.
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ii) Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the carrying amount and the
affective interest rate. Interest income is included under the head 'Other income’ in the statement of
profit and loss,

iif} Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Group's right to receive the dividend is established by the reporting date.
Dividend income is included under the head ‘Other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

|. Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. Government grant received in the form of sales tax subsidy has
been considered as revenue grant and the same has been recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan
is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

m. Foreign currency translation

i) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

i) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction
dates. Realised gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end
exchange rates and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

iii) Translation of foreign operations

The Group presents the financial statements in INR which is the functional currency of the parent
company. The assets and liabilities of a foreign operation are translated into the reporting currency {INR}
at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Their statement of profit and loss are translated at
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions or weighted average rates, where such rates
approximate the exchange rate at the date of transaction. The exchange differences arising on translation
are accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve under other comprehensive income. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating to that
foreign operation is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,
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n. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Casts incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

(i) Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined weighted average basis.

{ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

(i) Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

o. Retirement and other employee benefits

{i) Provident Fund

Provident fund is a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees. The Company, its Indian
subsidiaries and the eligible employees make a monthly contribution to the provident fund maintained by
the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner equal to the specified percentage of the basic salary of the
eligible employees as per the scheme. The contributions to the provident fund are charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the period / year when the contributions are due, The Company and its
Indian subsidiaries have no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

(i) Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit obligation plan cperated by the Parent Company and some of its Indian
Subsidiaries for its employees covered under Group Gratuity Scheme. The cost of providing benefit under
gratuity plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at
the reporting date. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance
palicy. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognized in full in the statement
of other comprehensive income in the reporting period in which they occur. Remeasurements are naot
reclassified to profit and loss subsequently. Some of the overseas subsidiaries operate Gratuity scheme
plan for employees as per laws of the respective countries, liability in respect of the same is provided on
the accrual basis, estimated at each reporting date.

(iii} Leave encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date.
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The Company and some of its Indian subsidiaries treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward
beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the reporting date. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognized
in full in the statement of profit and loss.

Overseas subsidiaries provide liability in respect of compensated absences for employees as per
respective local entity’s policies, The same is measured based on the accrual basis as the payment is
required to be made within next twelve months.

The Group presents the entire leave encashment liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it
does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

p. Income taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current
income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in statement of profit
and loss.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of temporary differences between tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except deferred tax lia bility arising
from initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/ loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses, except deferred tax assets arising from initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/ loss at the
time of transaction. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realized.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized in co-relation
to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount is written down to the extent the Group does
not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
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g.

5.

Segment reporting
(i) Identification of segment

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker of the Company.

{ii) Segment accounting policies

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole. In accordance with
paragraph 4 of Ind AS 108- “Operaling Segments” the Company has disclosed segment information
only on basis of the consolidated financial statements which are presented together along with the
standalone financial statements.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period / year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period / year. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus elemant in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consalidation of shares), if
any occurred during the reporting period, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period / year attributable to
the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period /
year, are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of shares and potential dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial
statements by the Board of Directors.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. These estimates are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates,
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t. Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or
a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reiiably.

u. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash eguivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Group's cash management.
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Note 4: Investments

Non-current investmants

| Face value of Shares/Uni Amount
March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015 | March 31, 2017 | Marech 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Unguated
Investment carried at Cost
Investment in Equity instruments of subsidiaries;
Salar Explochem Maurititus Limited LsD 1 : C- (2 G 5 125.00
Solar Mining Services Australia Pty Ltd usp 1 ! oan &0 L i ] rzs,ns,ﬁ.&?.w 26,5530000 | 250500000
Solar Explochem Ghana Ltd. GHE 1 ' 15,200 € 15,200 { 15,200 L 4,99,630.73 (5,10,456.25 . 4,81,562.50
Solar Industrias Mozambigue Lda MTn 1 {25,000 { 25000 25,000 L 40,722.66 - 41,605.00 L 39,350.00
Solar Mitro Chemicals Ltd. Teh's 10000 - {6,500 - - % 20,07, 375.00
Provision for Impairment « (41,359,340.99) .
L 3%6.25] | 30325937.50 |
Investment carrled at Cost
Investmant in Eguity instruments of Associates : )
Austalian Explosive Technologies Group Pry Led S0 0.01 i, 000 w6, 000 C 2,61,4390362 | - 2,46,64,060,00
SMS Bhatgaon Mines Extension Private Limited { Rs.10 b a,90,000 490,000 | ' 4,90,000 . 45,00,000.00 45, 00,000.00 -4%,00,000.00
Solar Bhatgaon Extension Mines Private Limited o R 10 4,90,000 ( 4,90,000 A, 500,000 5 49,00,000.00 | £ 49,00,000.00 b 49,00,000.00
" ision for Impairmeent | {568, 00,000.00] =
S - | 3594390362 3,4464,060.00
Inwestment carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Investment in Equity instruments of Others .
Rainbow Production Limited ({Rsc 10 — - b 2,50,000 - : C ' 5,00,000.00
Ganga Care Hospltal Limited “LRs. 10 € 1,10,000 ¢ 110,000 | & 1,10,000 ( 11,00,000.00 11,00,000.00 V11,00, 000,00
| { 11,00000007 " 110000000 35,00,000.00 |
Total [equity Instruments) [ 11,00,000.00 | { 4,23,58,639.87 | ° 4,10,89997.50
Investment in government securities (NSC) ¢ 10,000.00 f 40,000.00 {  40,000.00
®
Investment in Venture Capital Fund (Unguoted) - : ” = .
Kotak India Growth Fund 1| Fis. 100000 500 500 son | % 3,31,1855500 |0 s043834700| \ 4502897200
Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)
ICHC| Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan Rs. 10 3,377 § R12,989.05
Total [debentures and bonds) b, 3,39.41 544 86 iﬁ’iﬂiﬂ 4,50,68,972.00
Tatal non-current invest (3504158046 | 9173698687 | “8,5158,969.50
Aggregate amount of quoted investments L 8,12,989.46 -
i .egate amount of unquoted investments ", 3,42,28,555.00 | ( 9,17,36,986.87 | 8,61,58,969.50
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Current investments
Aoy
March 31, 2017 Msrch B, 2006 April 1, 2005
016
Quoted
| lerwestment in sguity instruments of [fully paid-up) :
| Fremier Sxpdoaivi Lirited Re £0 - - 13,347 = ¢ Ok SOJ. 00
lai Corporation Linited st - 10,200 10,200 - T, Fe0.00 7514, 500.00
Rellance Incastrlal infragtructure United R, 10 aEr sy FaT AS0E12.00 248,945 (K] i.‘uil',ihm
Tata Iron Steel o Lirnited R 10 g 1,000 1,000 ¢ ~315,500.00 [ 258 350.00
A indhustries Lirnived Rs. 2 5,331 5331 - 26, 560.00 2336000
IDFC Lirnited Fs. 10 10,900 5,000 F - 504,050 00 1,535,200.00
IDFC Bank: Lirmited Re. 10 ‘3,430 1R000 - * 562, 164.00 1,233 500000
uiand Linmnited . 10 30,930 + . 165 05T 08 -
Sunil Hitech Engirsery Linvted Bal 116,000 - 136532032 =
|
5,588,503, 16 [ 483726500 | = 2,266926.98
| Duoted
Inwestmant in makual funds of ;
ML Growth Plan R 10 " 'Hil.iid- - c 15,306,140.00
HOFC Pristeracs Fund-Direct Plan-Growth Optian Rs. 10 (1{:5.455 - ( S, 209, D6 00 - .
Rlience Fned Horlzon Fund - Growth Plan R, 10 - | 4,908 590 - « |% 5635338729
Seiarece Aegular Saving Fund Balanced Plan - Direct Growth Rs. 10 fiun.?n - 063,797 -
Risliarce Regulsr Saving Fund-Dsta Plan- Direct drowth Plan | Re1d | zsos0as | ~1smass : Cesgrazaras | U ansonsriea S
Retiarice Reqular Saving Fusd-Dube Plan- Growth Flan Rz, 10 A354,880 L12,045 08O - s B0BBIAL21G | L 20857728600
Fopdlianoe Dymamie Bored Fund - Growth Option Hs, 100 - & 1,883,789 . 35,801, TR 00
Roefiarce Equity Seving Fund - Growth Flan Rs. 10 AB0T0.352 - 5‘ 100,568, 546,45
ICIC) Prusential Liguid - Direct Plan - Growth Az 10 ' 124,689 - - & 30,014 51300 - -
Biela Suun Life Balanced ‘35 Fund Grewth Direct Plan As. 10 | mam0 . - 31,319,700 28
Birla Sun Life Balancad '35 Fund-Growth Regular Man As. 30 33,837 3 Ca3.0e7 031,96 3
Birla Sun Life Cash Manager-Growth Direct Plan Az 10 .- 113,780 f SOOSS.63T.60 -
S8l Magnum Balanced Fund-Rag Growsh Ae IO 01,217 i, 21,953 554,08
28| Magrum Bslarced Fund-Dir Growth Rs. 10 183571 L, 21,093 468.00 -
Katak Balance Direct Plan Growth Rs. 10 AR, 7T = L, 7118043740
Kiatak Liguid Divect Plan Growth Fs. 10 B.06S © 20,013,770 . -
Franklin ndia Trassury Managemeny Aocount-Super s, 10 20,568 - § B0034 075 00 - -
bccrtak Balancs Divect Plan Grawth Rs. 10 " azgaso . . L 15,211 806.11 : :
Frasnblin inafa Trosdury Management Soooint-5oupe He 10 324,198 = - \ ALTTEATT.OF ’ -
Feesiance Liquid Fund - Cash Plan - Growth Option As. 10 750 (15.5 € yszrasemn | € paas200 _ -
— il
Total [mutwal funds) A ATH60068 | [ 30440232235 | 82102745509
- -
Total Cusrent imiestments 49747790708 | ', 373,394,332.27

|Aggregate amount of quoted invistments

- 303,194,382.27
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Mote 5: Loans
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Current Non-Current Current MNon-Current Current MNon-Current

Unsecured, considerad good . ~ 5

Loan to associates {refer note 25 "110,181,326.00 10,229,635.50 9,370,502 00 -
Loans to Employees + 2482 132 .00 ) z | -2,782,132.00 - % 3,003,132.00 | - %
Loan to Other ¢ 255,111,93371 | ¢ 504,202,977.72 | | 381,663,345.96 h 560,388,874.00 | ¢ 307,555,747.59 “560,349,244.00
Secured considersd Good

Loan to others - L 158,739,354.85 y  160,139,354.85 “. 177,453,354 BS

. £ -~ -

_ 267,7 = 763,042,332.57 | 394,675,113.96 | .720,528,228.85 | 31992938150 | 737,802,598 85

aortws:

1, Loans are non derivative financial assets which generate a fived or variable interest income for the group. The carrying value may be affected by changes in the

credit risk of the counterparties.

2. Maon Current ghsecured laans to other includes amounts which are outstanding for more than 12 menths and as approved by board, no interest is charged on the
same. The Company has flled a litigation against the counterparty for recovery of the said amount. Considering the current arbitration proceedings, management
believes that this amount would be recovered in full, however the timing of recovery is uncertain and hence the same is classified as non-current

_ Note 6: Other financial assets

Motes:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
_ Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Currant MNon-Current
Derivative Instruments at fair value
through profit & loss & < F
Foreign-exchange forward contracts 98,735467.00 227,652,941.00 - “181,277,145.00
Interest rate swaps r‘;g 303,091 .00 -
- 111,038,558.00 - | “227,652,941.00 - 1" 1s1277,145.00
sales Tax Receivable “ a70588,604.21 | 25438147141 | N 37967560537 | | 17894630053 || 348857514.00 | 140.158570.16
Deposits r o 42340000 ¥ ¢ 423,400.00 423,400.00
Interest accrued but not due on FD b 2491 453 0F — - _‘ 3,285,310 .44 L [ 958403341 -
| 473,080,147.28 |\ 21.41 | “382,965,005.81 | -179,369,790.53 | " 356,451,547.41 | 140,581,970.16
*ssaiie705.28 [ zsesospzian] Sioe17saesi| 179.369,70053 | 53972869241 ] [ 140,581,970.16

1. Derfvative instruments at fair value through profit or loss reflect the positive change in fair value of those foreign exchange forward eantracts that are not
designated in hedge relationship, but are, nevertheless, intended to reduce the jevel of foreign currency risk for foreign currency borrowing.




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7: Trade receivables

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

. 3,4820,90,215.30 |

134,44,67,574.74)

2,99,56,48,939.41
' (28,58,00,332.60)

© 2,35,53,47,160.62
(20,28,55,804.34)

~3 22.640.56 | - 2,70,98,48,606.81 | ¢ 2,15,24,91,356.28
Break-up of security details
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Secured, considered good { 7,51,47,183.33 3,10,48,045.31 -
Unsecured, considered good 3,06,24,75,457.23 | 12,67,88,00,561.50 2,15,24,91,356.28
Unsecured, considered doubtful 34.44,67.574.74 28,58,00,332.60 « 20,28,55,804.34

* 3,48,20,90,215.30

\ 2,99,56,48,939.41

' 2.35,53,47,160.62

Allowance for doubtful debts

{34,44,67,574.74)

+ (28,58,00,332.60)

- {20,28,55,804.34)

“3,13,76,22,640.56

*2.70,08.48,606.81 | . 2,15,24,91,356.28
MNote 8: Cash and bank balances
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
In current accounts \ 24,92,97,601.88 [ 23,9931 601.38 112,98,31,105.35

Cash on hand

< 1,00,35,868.59

< 1,44,66,017.80

+ 1,62,80,583.89

L 25,93,33,470.47 < 25,43,97,619.18 : Hsﬁi!llggg.ﬂ

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015

Other bank balances
Deposit accounts - with remaining maturity of less
than 12 Months

© 4,05,32,476.49

. 2,62,74,593.73

( 16,34 63 565.82

Deposit accounts - held as margin money 9,34,19,213.68 . 8,4955,944.40 " 5,08 48 314.87
Earmarked balances (on unclaimed dividend ~ §,12,08553 - 15,03,750.53 511,118.53
accounts)

" 13,45,63,775.70 | 11,2734 \ 22,38,22 999.22




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 9: Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and investment property - 4,09,870.25 -
Alowance for doubtful debts - trade receivables 1,45,25,237.00 1,35,09,526.00 -
Other items 5,68,71,114.42 - -
T 7.13,96,351.42 | T 1,39,19,.396.25 :

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and investment property

o

~11,57,20,895.42)| ¢

(11,18,352.00)

< (1,57,20,895.42) 4{11 18,352.00)

. 5,56,75456.

o1




Solar Industries india Limited

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

{all amounts in Augees, unless otherwise stated)

MNaote 10: Other assets

L Mtasch 3l 2017 Eﬁ 1, 2016 __Aprill, 2005 0
Cumrrert Current _Fﬁlim Currant _Monr-Currerdt |
Capital advances ¢ 109,107 895,17 - 0,177,327.99 50,199, 763.13
Advances other than capital advances : ’ ,
Prapaid Gratuity . £7,234,067.00 % BT D62.00
Security Deposits £232,334.00 ©44,639,358.37 = z 46,051,102 45
Advances to wppliers for Goods and O ¥2,351,395.06 (387869327 | ¢ 124,703,540.87 . 148,862,078.26 :
Services
Advances to Staff 5,356,483.80 ¢ 12674,083.57 L 13,376,041.14
Clalms receiwable on imports 1,617 48800 117, 66800
Other Recevables 42,322 53140 77.339,745.73 L 68,048 005,54
Propaymaents . 11,358 BO8.BS - 5081161587 L 17,339, 143,50
Balances with Revenus Autharities JER,393 284,67 L B2ET12G ' 283,605 155,37 134, 745,303.57 =
Advance for Expenses L 188 803.3% - o B2 500,00
el " -
“544,721,818.92 | ( 163,952,725.10 | * S00,004,209.75 | " 383,320,571.00 | ~ 196,317,027.54 |
Mote 11; Invenbories
31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Raw materials & Packing Material € 1,201,567,969.61 l.. 977,506,458.1% G0 BEA BRG.07
Work-in-progress L 127,035.929.41 *113,369,553.53 09 640, 178.35
Finished goods o 19647198158 = 355,067 569,52 ~ 482 036,138.25
Traded goods % 50381,98391 - 15,732.918.51 < 3BTRS 46512
Stores and spares ¢ 12725232184 | . 136,880.56511 o BB TS 408 45
Goods i Transst ¥, TA81 ETTO5 - .
S
T1,810,723,064.30 | . 1,598, 557,064.83 | 1 609 901,5974.22




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(&l amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 12: Equity share capital

,-—.h_J‘u_rns_Nﬂn r of Amount
—

March 31 2017 Er_ﬁ; 31, 2016 Apeil 8 2015 2017 March 31, 2016 &nﬁ 1, 2015
Authorised equity share capital

iface valle fs 10 pach) ¢ % S 27000000 | % 27000000 © | " 27.00,00,000.00 * 27,00,00,000,00

Iface value Rs.2 each) | 135000000 . . ©27,00,00,000.00 - -
- 113,50,00,000 |~ 2,70,00,000 | —-£,70,00,000 | *_27,00,00,000.00 000 27,00,00,000.00] - 27,00 00

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid share : < 18098011 | 18098011 “18.0980,11000] *18,09,80.110.00

capital (face valus Rs, 10 each]
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid share % 804,90.055 - - 18,09,80.110.00

caoital (fare value e 2 each)
9 055 - 18098011 = 1,80,98,011 “namgmm 25' Eﬂ‘% T 110.06

 —

(8} Movements in equity share capital

Numiber of Shares
17 [ March 31, 2016 _ —Aeril 3, 2015 | Wiarch 31, 7017 |
MNumber of Shares at the beginning of the =" 1,80,98,011 ¢ 18098011 | < 1,B0,98,011 18,09,80,110.00

vear
d: Shares spiit during the year 7.23,92.044

of Shares at the the year " 9,04,90,055 “18098011 | - 98,011 | * 10.00
fb}rnms;rum--mmdmnmmm

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.2 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held, The dividend proposed by
the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders jn the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of

liguidation, the equity shareholdars are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferentjal amounts, in prapertion to their
sharehalding,

() Equity shares held by ultimate holding/ holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ assoclates
The Company Being uitimate haolding company, there are no shares held by any other holding, ultimate holding company and their subsidiarias/ associates,

[ Mame of the shareholder Mo of shares

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015
Shri Satyanarayan Nuwal “ 22.48% 2,03,43 695 40,68,739 " 40,558,787
Shri Kallashehandra Nuwal 19.60% 1,77.39,095 35475819 T 3547819
Smit Indira Devi Nuwal 5.15% v 55,68,230 11,13,648 % 11,13.646
Smit Leela Devi Nuwal 5.61% . 50.75,840 + 10,15,188 % 10,15,188
Smit.Sohan Devi Muwal 5.14% 46,449,500 % 9,28938 ¥ 9,79,038

As per records of the Company, including Its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding benficial interest, the
above shareholding represents the legal ownership of shares,




Solar Industries India Limited
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 13 (a): Non-current borrowings

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 |
secured Borrowings carried at amortised cost

Term loans _

Foreign currency loan from Banks (USD) - 2,39,54,62,334.564 1,87,94,56,162.17 | 1,97,35,11,067.13
Interest Accrued but not due v 72,25,813.14 L 57.37,104.69 « 12,85,831.00
Unsecured Loan From Related Party o 129.64 - -

Sales Tax Deferral Loan | 61,61,312.05 + B4,21,303.00 ~ 64,21,303.00

Total current borrowings 2,40,88,49,589.39 | - 1,89,16,14,569.86 | "1,08,12,18,201.13

Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (included in note 16) ¢ 192,20,63,992 80] ((53,87,55,420,00)] "(42,18,88,240.50)

Less: Current maturities of interest accrued on long term borrowings (included <(72,25,813.14) % (57,37,104.69) © (12,85,831.00)

lin note 16}

: [_1,55,80,44,129.63

Mote 13 (b): Current borrowings

( March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

“Isecured
From banks
Foreign currency working capital loan 1,70,79,98,269.53 | 1,26,36,04,300.69 | 1,3898,08,703.26
Indian Rupee working capital loan 10,47,26,104.43 30,03,12,994.11 11,38,70,567.96
Buyers credit 18,2648, 695.56 - 14,64,30,843.55
Unsecured
From banks
Buyers credit - 312.81,16,860.22 -
Indian Rupee working capital loan 45,00,00,000.00 . -
Leans from associates 21,83,65,750.78 20,78,51,873.39 7.53,38,806.13
From others 1,25,72,084.00 1,68,96,925.00
Total current borrowings '2.67,63,10,904.30 | 2,11,67,83,553.41 | 1,72,54,48,920.90
Less: Interest accrued (included in note 16) . (4,36,01,154.56)] © (272.07,723.12)] « (34,70,807.00]
Current borrowings 3 Mﬁ
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Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
[All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14: Deferred tax liabilities

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Derivative Instruments at fair value through profit or loss
‘Pegvision for investments In associates

“ {3,391,780.00)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment © 1,060,533,71003 | < 904,574, 78548 | a 16,945,106,22
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (139649400 | “4078031.00 | 6,569,091.00
Derivative Instruments at fair value through profit or loss k 10.433,760.00 | < 10,814,156.00 "2,103,379.00
Prepaid Gratuity € 2,503,711.00 | <8,290,268.00 22,794,00
Mutual fund Investment valued at NAY Basis - v B7A432.09 -
Other Items #1,376,379.74

¢ 1,074,867,675.03 | . 925 221,052.31 ||, 825,640,370.22
Deferred tax assets
Mat Credit 1133,158,063.30)| <

172,307,261.80)

{190,382, 536.35)
"[8.258,145.00)

e receivables (189,169,574.00)  (76,480,708.00)] (62,648,062,00)
Employee Benefits payables ¢ 19,064,360.00) - -
Other Items - “(12,695.61)

__(234,783,777.80)|" (128,787 965.50] T (263,301,438 58]
Net deferred tax liabilities - M




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 15: Trade payables

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

April 1, 2015

Current
Trade payables

927,058,764.73

=1,062,680,141.27

756,265,817.79

Trade payables to related parties (refer note 29] = * 150,108.51 © 17,647,205.76 *_ 256426.00
C 927 < 327,347. $756,522,243.79
Note 16: Other financial liabilities
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Current
Derivative Instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Foreign-exchange forward contracts * 80,891,894.00 ' 158,482,477.00 | ' 140,129,407.00
Interest rate swaps - 37,924 708.00 ' 52,197,360.00
80,891,894.00 ¢ 196,407,185.00 . 202,326,767.00
~10thers p ‘
Capital creditors 6,518,239.16 ¢ 29,091,918.42 “ 47.790,166.35
Current maturities of long term debt 927.063,992.80 539,141,459.41 | * 421,888 240.50
Interest accrued on non-current borrowings * 7,225,813.14 *5,737,104.69 . 1,285,831.00
Interest accrued on current borrowings " 43,601,154.56 < 27,207,723.12|  3,470,807.00
Liakilities towards employee benefits + 8863578830 | < 71,736502.37 46,113,824.68
Unpaid Dividend 545 627.00 1,376578.00 403,727.00
L 1,068590614.96 | ' 674,291,286.01 | ' 520,952,596.53
L 1,14 “B7 471 7 s
Note 17: Other current liabilities
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Statutory Dues Payables 1231,971,673.23 234 801,020.40 | ' 228,655,341.03
Liabilities for Employee benefit <7 17,251,124.36 - 1,504,901.84 | ' 5,681,546.90
Creditors for Transport Agent & Others . 34,268.00 [ 22,900.00 -
Advances from customers ¢ 180,060,326.00 -202,010,520.51 136,188,825.60
Other Deposit received 57.,205,288.30 - 47,978.00 -
L - 679.89 | ' 438,387,320.75]| 3 713.




Solar Industries India Limited

Nates to Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
MNote 18: Revenue from operations

The group derives the following types of revenue:

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Sale of products (including excise duty)
Other operating revenue

< 16,52,34,98,746.79
v 58,93,26,423.82

$15,21,54,40,939,57
¢ 52,47,15,772.85

L 17,11,28,25,170.61

Note 19: Other income and other gains/(losses)

{a) Other income

- 15,74,01,56,712.42

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2016

Interest Income
On financial assets corried ot amortised cost
From Others
From Bank
From income tax refund
Profit on sale of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

Other Misc Income
Insurance Claim
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets

Y 5,83,35,065.69
« 91,51,035.99

. 48,20,141.39
. 2,86,40450.45

* 20,52,175.55
~ 39,46,238.70
3,55,547.40

“3,15,44,349.59
\78,67,064.25
3,42,72,362.03

¢ 1,13,31,603.01

57,300.50
< 9,18,124.48

. 10,73,00,655.17

___8,60,00,803.86

{b) Other gains/{losses)
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 |

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment %1,40,253.32 v 7.73.01067
Net gain on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or * 2,00,88,402.05 ' 74,65,099.12
loss
Income - Other Misc income — Non Operating . +-21,38,892.23
Fair value gain on derivatives not designated as hedges - 45,84,387.00 * 3,60,95,067.00

L. 2,48,13,042.37 4,64,72,069.02

[Total (a+b)

Note 20 (a): Cost of materials consumed

13,21,13,697.54 ] £ 13 24,72,872.88

m 31, 2017

arch 31, 2016

Rlaw materials at the beginning of the year 86,27,24,405.949 ~ 90,93,68,795.02
Add: Purchases |4 _9_.2 1,05,56,276.98 8,57,47,00,156.71
Less: Raw material at the end of the year ( 1,04,08,11,549.49 € 91,62,37,760.18
Total cost of materials consumed < _9,03,24,69,133.43 | " 8,56,78 91.55
Note 20 (b): Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods

March 31, 2017 Marc 2016
Changes in inventories < (17,1758 . _5,25,40,982.62
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(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Note 21: Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident fund, gratuity

{ 974,522,054.13
( 52,210,329.10

March 31, 2017

[ March 31, 2016 |
814,594,197.22

(46,091,574.25

staff welfare expenses (16,388,12244 | . 15,622,278.06
- —
\ 5.67| ° 876,308,049.53 |
MNote 22: Other expenses
31, 2017 u@"ﬁ;, 2016

Consumption of stores and spares 113,430,415.46 006,412 .66
Excise Duty On Closing Stock Increase / Decrease '7,084,386.00 2,797,622.00
Repairs and maintenance ;

Plant and machinery ( 75,402,085.14 ( B1,146.71

Buildings (' 21,380,716.01 \ 16,292,552.13

Others ¢ 53,696,768.99 { 54,673,652.49
Power & Fuel charges ¢ 185,923,507.76 { 176,651,794.12

Rates and taxes

Legal and professional fees

Travel expenses

Export Expenses

Transportation Charges

Remuneration To Directors

Pump Truck Expenses

Security Service Charges

Sales Promotion Expenses

Donations

Advertisement Expenses

Investment Written Off

Directors' Sitting Fees

Insurance charges

Income - Loss On Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation
Corporate social responsibility expenditure

< 46,850,089.84
~141,129,256.76
¢ 94,186,465.75
{ 328,636,88056
<312,421,999.20
‘. 89,998,560.00
. 73,033,178.94
¢ 72,141,709.25
< 45,067,832.45

{ 27808,091.10
6,159,357.05
-1,887,150.00

* 4,704,206.19

< 28,431,204.56
< 269,963,275.61
< 29,148,310.75

{ 35,408,364.56
115,270,077.36
99,446,925.96
'280,778,784.35
261,751,422.21
~82,531,904.91
L 58,694,906.35
.58,570,275.07
\, 18,086,824 35
L 26,284 065.25
L 5,932579.79
42,500,000.00
L 1,866,388.36
(.3,314,342.34
(' 50,810,432.02
{ 22,290,000.00

Fair Value Gain on derivates i_' 5,683,480.00 ¢ (16,200,312.00)
Impairment loss on Property Plant & Equipment * E,527,889.75 :
Impairment loss on Investment GZ,BSS,ZBB.EE - -
Impairment loss on Trade Receivables c"_"f-5,901,256_3$ r54,639.335.??
Sales Commission ( 65,678,771.89 < 32,174,166.59
Payments to auditors (refer note 22(a) below) .9,277,375.00 _-8,501,968.00
Miscellaneous Expenses (includes Printing , Communication , Postage , office L 248,284,055.16 5:155?,469.59
expenses etc)

Total other expenses 2 71565011 2.24
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{All amaounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Note 22(a): Details of payments to auditors

Interest on Borrowings
To Banks

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 |
Payment to auditors
As auditor: ]
Audit fee 4,566,400.00 < 4,002,338.00
Tax audit Fee ¢ 800,000.00 ¢ 800,000.00
Limited Review * 75,750.00 ' 70,000.00
In other capacities )
Taxation matters £ 2,263,800.00 ¢ 1,759,580.00
Certification fees ( 1,116,925.00 ©1,470,050.00
Vat Audit Fees 454,500.00 < 400,000,00
S5
S 9277375001 8501,968.00
MNote 23: Finance costs
_31 March 2017 31 March 2016

" 210,095,126.86

" 161,233,725.27

To Related Party -~ 30,063,214.00 —10,756,000.00
To Others o 28,778,694.57 f---’! 2,389,909.79
©268,937,035.43 | < 204,379,635.06
Note 24: Tax expense
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 |
Current tax = (. .
Current tax on profits for the year < 712,346,660.22 . T18,688,282.30
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods ¢ (7.467,452.10)| © . (548528150}
£704,879,208.12 | 713,203,000.80 |
Deferred tax ¢
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets 'L__ (22,303,263.00) . 951,606.10
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities /8482185556 | ' 153,238,965.00
- 62,518,592.56 <'154,190,571.10
767, % 867,393,571.90
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Mote 25: Earnings per share (EPS)

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Basic and Diluted EPs

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the compa ny used in calculating basic and diluted EPS; ~1,8543,32,819 | | 1,63,65,37,011
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic and ¢ 9,04,90,055 \9,04,90,055
diluted Eps

LY

Basic and Diluted EPS attributable to the equity holders of the company (Rs.) L 20499 18.09
Nominal value of shares {Rs.} 2.00 2,00
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(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
Note 26: Business combination and acquisition
Acquisitions during the year ended March 31, 2016

Acquisition of Blastec (India) Private Limited

On April 1, 2015, the Group acquiried 100% of the voting shares of Blastec India Private
Limited, a non-listed company based in India and specialising in manufacturing of explosives, in

exchange for cash.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilites of Blastee (India) Private Limited as at the

date of acquisition were:

Total identifiable net assets/ (net liabilities) at fair value
Goodwill arising on acquisition

Purchase consideration transferred- paid in cash

Particulars Fair value recognised on
acquisition
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3,17,43,226
Deferred tax asset (net) ¢ 9797494
Other non-current assets - 18,44,328
Inventories 84,53,655
Trade receivables <« B,56,79455
Cash and cash equivalents ~ 65,889,233
Bank balances other than above 57,00,352
Other financial assets - 4,44 386
Loans - 79,62,301
Other Current Assets < 23,05,769
<. 16,05,20,199

Liabilities
Current borrowings v 9,92 52542
Trade payables © 5,41,52,927
Other financial liabilities ¢ 77,10,878
Other current Liabilites *15,53,813

|, 16,26,70,160
< (21,49,961)

< 71,37,621

- 49,87,660

The deferred tax asset mainly comprises the temporary difference arising due to expected

credit loss provision on trade receivables

The goodwill of Rs. 7,137,621 com prises the value expected synergies arising from the
acquistion and a customer arder, which is not separately recognised as the same is not
separable and therefore, it does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset
under Ind AS 38. Goodwill recognised in not deductible for income tax purposes,
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Acquisition of Emul tek Private Limited

On April 1, 2015, the Group acquiried 100% of the voting shares of Emul Tek Private Limited, a
non-listed company based in India and specialising in manufacturing of explosives, in exchange
for cash.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilites of Emul Tek Private Limited as at the date
of acquisition wera:

Particulars Fair value recognised ﬁ]
acquisition
Assets
Property, plant and equipment (a6,78,138
Other non-current assets < 1,561,895
Inventories L 47,000
Cash and cash equivalents L 2,57,068
Bank balances other than above < 1,32,24,.157
Other financial assets . 2,23,942
Other Current assets -~ 28,32,892
Deferred tax assets net) © 4,09870
2,18,34,962
Liabilities
Trade payables “l,24,98,529
Other financial liabilities  2,56,000
Other current liabilites « 5,11,964
% 1,32,66,493
Total identifiable net assets at fair value ( 85,68,469
Capital Reserve “ (6,04,149)
Purchase consideration transferred- paid in cash . 79,64 20

The deferred tax asset mainly comprises the tax effect of the depreciation for tax purposes of
tangible assets,

Capital reserve represents the difference between the net fair value of the identifiahle assets,
liabilities acquired and the cost of business acquisition. The same is recognized in the other
comprehensive income,




Solar Industries India Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 27: Employee Benefit obligations
(i) Post-employment obligations

a) Gratuity

The Parent Company and some of its Indian Subsidiaries Operate a defined benefit plan viz. namely gratuity
Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least 5 years of service gets a gratuity on de
(minimum) of the last drawn salary for each year of service. The sche

qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarized the components of net benefit expense recognized
comprehensive income, and the funded status and amount recognized

The amounts recognized in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as

follows:

Expense Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

in the statement of profit and loss, other
in the balance sheet.

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Service cost 67,008,942 50,89,000
Net Interest Cost (9,91,607) -
Expenses Recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss ( 57,127,335 ' 50,89,000
Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Opening amount recognized in OCI outside of statement of profit or - .
account
Actuarial gain / (loss) on liabilities { (1,66,99,315) . 5,26,000
Actuarial gain / (loss) on assets < (2,25,260) -
Closing of amount recognized in OCI outside of statement of profit ( (1,69,24,575) % 5,26,000
and loss
The amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet Statement

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Present value of funded obligations \ 7,88,61,288 " 5,40,45,000

Fair value of plan assets

{ 808,381,260

¢ 6,64,40,080

Net defined benefit liability / (assets) recognized in balance sheet

. (20,19,972)

\ (1,23,95,080)

Change in Present Value of Obligations

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Opening of defined banefit obligations 5,40,45,000 " 5,02,85,000
Service cost 67,08,942 ' 50,89,000
Interest Cost ¢ 43,23,600 40,23,000
Benefit Paid ¢ (29,15,569) " {48,26,000)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on total liabilities: - 1,66,99,315 * o (5,26,000)
Closing of defined benefit obligation __1,88,61,288 { 5,40,45,000

for its employees.
parture @ 15 days
me is funded with an insurance company in the form of
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Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Opening fair value of plan assets * 6,64,40,080 ~ 6,33,73,933
Actual Return on Plan Assets 50,898,947 v 51,53,147
Employer Contribution v 1,22,66,804 27,39,000
Benefit Paid (29,15,569) (48,26,000)
Closing fair value of plan assets . 8,08,81,262 76,64,40,080
The major categories of plan assets as a parentage of the fair value of tatal plan assets are as follows -

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Investments with insurer {LIC) 100% b 100%
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows :

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Discount Rate | 6.8% per annum “ 8% perannum

Rate of increase in Compensation levels
Rate of Return on Plan Assets

1

7.5% per annum
#% per annum|

¢ 5% per annum
8.10% per annum

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation,
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based
applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled.

take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and

on the interest rate prevailing in the market on that date,

Sensitivity Analysis
Following table shows the sensitivity results on liability due to change in the assumptions:

March 31, 2017 Impact Impact

' (Absolute) {%)

Base Liability * 7,88,61,288
Increase Discount Rate by 0.50% 7,59,62,253 © (28,99,035)| "-3.68%
Decrease Discount Rate by 0.50% < 8,19,76,275 «  31,14,987 |, 3.95%
Increase Salary Inflation by 1% * 8,47,90,867 v 5929579 | \ 7,509
Decrease Salary inflation by 1% . 7,35,61,282 * (53,00,006)f -6.72%
Increase in Withdrawal Assumption by 5% 7,69,24,739 “ (19,36,549)} -2.46%
Decrease in Withdrawal Assumption by 5% 8,16,91,717 “ 28,30,429 | 3.59%

Motes :
1. Liabilities are very sensitive to discount rate, salary

inflation and attrition rate,

2. Liabilities are very less sensitive due to cha nge in mortality assumptions. Hence, sensitivities due

to change in mortality are ignored.
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Note 28: Commitments and contingencies

Capital and other Commitments

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April1,2015 |
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 86,150,350 57,849,676 112,301,585
[net of advances)

Contingent liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Corporate guarantees given by the Company an behalf of its wholly cwned 1,021,308,750 1,043,437,500 656,197,500
overseas subsidiary in respect of loans taken

performance and financial guarantees gven by the Company 1,064,273,657 618,732,587 1,072,170,747
Guarantees given by Company’s Bankers an behalf of the Company, against 1,069,542,500 1,192,500,000 124,990,000
sanctioned letter of credit (SBLC's)

Excise demands- matters under dispute (net of deposit made)® 63,163,238 62,391 688 70,620,240
Salos tax deferment o4, 700,000 94,700,000 94 700,000
Sales tax demands- matters under dispute® 116,214,202 84 408,646 50,905,044
Income tax demands- matters under dizpute® 55,226,183 58,482 456 43,886,817

*The Company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax/legal advisors,

thie appellate process. No tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements For the tax demand raised.

believe that its position will likely be upheid in
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Wi

Note 29: Related Party Disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship :

Associates
SMS Bhatgaon Mines Extension Private Limited
solar Bhatgoan Extension Mines Private Limited

Key Management Personnel [KMP] {including subsidiaries)

Shri 5.N. Muwal

Shri K.C. Muwal

Shri Manish Nuwal
Shri R D vakil

Shiri Anil Kumar Jain
Shri Nilesh Panpaliya
smit Khushboo Pasari
Shri Rahul Muwal
Shri K5 Talesra

Shri 5 L Mundhada

Mon executive directors®

Shrl Anant Sagar Awasthi
Shri Dilip Patel

Shri Ajai Nigam

Shri Amrendra Verma
smt Madhu Vij

* Non Executive Independent Directors were only paid sitting fees for attending Board &
Board Committee meetings for the year 2016-17.

Company has not entered into any other transactions with its Non Executive Independent
Directors or the enterprises over which they have significant influence.,

Enterprises, over which control or significant influence is exercised by individuals listed in
"|I' above [with whom transactions have taken place)

Solar Synthetics Private Limited
Commercial Sales Corporation
solar Initiating Systems Limited

Enterprises, aver which control or significant influence is exercised by individuals listed in
"II* above (other than IV above)

Solar Initiating Systems Limited

Mahakal Infrastructures Private Limited

Mahakal Project Private Limited

Magpur Infrastructure Private Limited

alar Processors [Bhilwara) Limited

Gulmohar Developers and Constructions Private Limited
sun Developers and Constructions Private Limited
sunbeam Developers and Constructions Private Lirnited
Sundrop Realtors Private Limited

sunland Infracon Private Limited

sunlight Infraventures Private Limited

Other related party

Solar Industries India Limited employee group gratuity assurance scheme
{Post emphyoment benefit plan of the Company)

Ecanomic Explosives Limited employee group gratuity assurance scheme
{Post emplyoment benefit plan of the Company)

Refer to Note 27 for information on transactions with post emplyoment benefit plan
mentioned above
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Transactions with related parties during the year

year ended March 31, 2017

Mature of Transaction March 31,2017 | March 31, 2016

Purchase of raw material and components

salar Synthetics Private Limited 19,70,863 993,262

solar Initiating Systems Limited . 74,08,156

Total ¢ 19,70,863 __ 84,01,318

Rent paid

solar Synthetics Private Limited 467,947 207,798

solar Initiating Systems Limited 12,00,000 10,040,000

i

Total {16,67,947 /12,07,798

Loans given/ [repaid) during the year (net)

5MS Bhatgaon Mines Extension Private Limited 10,51,302 7,72,263

Solar Bhatgoan Extension Mines Private Limited 1,50,950 1,02,080

z/

Total -12,02,252 874,343

Loans taken/ repaid during the year (net)

Commercial Sales Corporation 4,65,42,984 16,31,20,414

Total . 4,65,42,984 T 16,31,20,414

Interest received

SMS Bhatgaon Mines Extension Private Limnited 957,182 854,737
|salar Bhatgoan Extension Mines Private Limited 1,34 645 1,10,085

Total _ 10,91,827 “g,64,826

Interest paid

commercial Sales Corporation 3,00,63,214 1,07,56,000

Total [3,00,63,214 | - 1,07,56,000

Remuneration to KMP* {,- 7

Shri 5. M. Nuwal “2,70,00,000 % 2,25,00,000

shri K.C. Nuwal : 2,70,00,000 1 2,25,00,000

Shri Manish Nuwal < 2,70,00,000 2,25,00,000

shri B D vakil ( 25,93,200 L 24,834,000

Shri Anil Kumar lain “ 28,05,360 ¢ 14,51,000

shri Nilesh Panpaliya < 2?}31,310 < 2598180

irs. Khushboo Pasari «7,80,387

Shri Rahul Nuwal . 12,00,000

Shri K 5 Talesra 24,00,000

Total

. 9,35,10,267
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Mature of Transaction March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
sitting fees
Shri Anant Sagar Awasthi {2,15,000 2,00,000
shri Dilip Patel { 2,555,000 * 1,80,000
Shri Ajai Migam . ©1,60,000 < 1,40,000
Shri Amrendra Verma 7 1,50,000 1,50,000
smt Madhu Vij { 1,00,000 /160,000
Total 8,280,000 i a,au,uoil

*This aforesaid ameount does not includes amount in respect of gratuity and jeave since the
actuarial valuation has been taken for the Company as a whole and individual amounts are not

determinable.

Balance outstanding at the year end were as follows:

Balances as at year end March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Loans given ¢
5MS Bhatgaon Mines Extension Private Limited " 89,45,296 [ 78,93,9494 Y 71,211,731
colar Bhatgoan Extension Mines Private Limited < 12,36,030 1085080 | 9,83,000
Tatal ¢ 1,01,81,326 . 89,79,074 £1,04,731
Loans taken
Commercial Sales Corporation 218365751 | © 17, 18,22,767 g7,02,353
Total [ 21,83,65,751 | - 17,18,22,767 . 87,02,353
Trade payables/ Other payables ;
solar Synthetics Private Limited * 46,606 %1,36,273 |, E
solar Initiating Systems Limited 1,03,500 v 10,25,000 | 256,426
Shri 5.M.Nuwal - <« B3.40385 -
Shri Manish Nuwal (60,774) 42,83,277
Shri K.C. Nuwal - % 38,62,270
Shri 5.V. Kannan - « 1,085,000
Shri K.5.Talesra 1,38,000 - -
Shri Rahul Nuwal - ¢ 70,000 -
Total 2,27,332 1,78,22,204 | © 2,56426




MNote 30: Segment Information

In accordance with paragraph 4 of ind AS 108 "Operating segments”, the Group has presented segmantal Infarmation only on the basis of the
Consolidated finandal statements which are presented together with the unconsclidated financial statements,

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)| as defined by Ind AS 108,
The CODM evaluates the Group's performance and allocates the resources. The Group ks enclusively engaged in the business of manufacturing
of explosives and its accessories. The entire operation is governed by the same set of risk and returns confirmed as representing a single
operating segment and not analysed separatety.

Geographical information

The Group is mainky domiciled in india. The amaount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is
shown in the table below:

[Revenue from external customers March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

india o 11768724274 < 105822,21,001
Rest of the World 4.75.47.74,473 L~ 563.32,19,839
[ Total o 16,52,34,98,747 _15,21,54,40,300 |
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Note 31: Fair Value Measurements

Thie Talr wabue of the financial assets and labilities s inclsded at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged im & current trangaction
between willing partes, ather than in a forced ar liquadation sabe,

whmmum«tmdmumpmwmuu:}mmﬁuhhm:

1 Thﬁrmhumldhdbﬂdﬁuhkmﬁnlhnmkmmuhuwhmdmhﬂm.mmmmrm
recebables, other financial assets [except derivatives] , trade payables, other Fingnicial liabilities (except dedhatives) and current borrowings, because
mll.rurmmmHuwwnmnﬂr.urwlu-.Furﬁm,!mmuuuu.ﬁ-mphnMth:mm
allorwances for eupected credit osses and adduslrdh:-mnhnwim.wuahh.

i 'Ihe&rmphnmthmahf&mﬂmtmmhmﬁhlﬂMnmtmrmﬂdlhismm:mnmtmtm:m
walses rofer note 4 of the financial statements.

3 'Fn-Hnnnu:iu.mﬂ:-ndlnullbsmﬂnmmmduhlrdm,ﬂmrﬂmnhnmﬂmmlwwm.

4 TmswmwmwnnmwmlmMﬂMm-Mmewmmw.mmmpﬂwfm
mcunhuuh.wﬂyabmhnrammmmﬂmmwnﬂmhmmﬁmdmmmt:lemﬁ
mmwamm.mmmnwmmmmmummummmmmum
mmmdwmmm:nmmdwmﬁnamﬂnmﬁm

5 mfammmwmm:tmmdmmmmmm.wmmmwwmmwmﬁw
:ompu-w.mdmM-ﬂm.mnmwmmhzﬂmmnruu-mmmdimiv.mmﬁdsmh
num-—emlmMﬁﬁmﬁhmmmm.ﬂanumammﬁhﬂhuﬂmm

& Fair values of the Group's interest-bearing bomowings are determmined by using discounted cash Flerw method wsing thi current hormowing rates. The
f-clarrent boarowings are classified o kevel 3 fair values iy the Fair value hierarchy due to inchusion of unobsenable inputs including own credit rsk.
This own ron-performance risk was assessed to be inslgnifscant.

A, Fair Value Hisranchy

Level 1. GQuoted prices [unadjusted] in acthe markets for identical assets or fiabilities.

Level 2- Orther techigques for which all mnumnmasipﬂmauteﬁm«nmmdm value are observable, either
directhy or indwecthy,

Lewel 3- Technigques which use inputs that have a signdficant affoct on the recorded fair value that are not based on ohsernvable
maricet dala.

'rher_uf.mcwl.ut.|ndMﬂudmmnmswmnhﬂn;meHMWdh&wmmmummmnemmvu.lt

March 31, 2017 s as follows:
Parthculars Carrylng Value Motes Cuoted prices In Significant Significant
achive marksts obsanvable unobservable
(Lewel 1) Inparts Inpurts
| lleveld) |
Financlal assets
Amrtised cost
Loans ﬁ,/o_a:;,w,m 5 1,030,817,724
Other Financlal assets [escept derivathms) {727 884,969 [ -
Trade recetvabies (’ 3,137,622,640 7
Cash and cash equivalents « 269,333,470 8
Rank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 134,563,776 B
\westment in government securities (NSC) ¢ 10,000 4 10,000
Falr value through profit of toss ) vl
nwestmaent in @guity instraments of athess 1,100,000 4 - . 1, 100,000
lunguoted]
Irestment in Yenture Capital Fund (unquoted) 118,555 ] - {”'13,11&55\5
irwestment in equity instruments (quoted) 5,598,302 4 .f 5,596,303 -
rnvestment in matual funds \ 492 592,593 . | 292,692,593 ( F
Derivative Imtruments (" 111,013,558 8 : 111,008,558
= z
Total Financlal assets [ 258,200,896 | | 144,167,113 " 1,031517,724 |
Financlal Liabiiities
Amortised cast
Borrowings b
Nor-current L 1aresseres 13 71,479,550, 783
Current K&m:z,m.m 13 .
Trade payabibes 937,208,873 16
Cothver financial Habiities o LGE,590,615 1
im value through profit or loss
Derrvative Imstraments B0, B9 1, 94 17 - 80,891,894
= 4 L -
[Total Financial lisbiities £ 6,188,960,915 - | € 80801808 || 1,479,550,783

There have been no ransfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Lewel 2 during the period.
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Tha carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by

mmhmummm dischosisres of fair value measurement hierarchy as at

arch 31, 2006 Is as follows:
[Particulars Carrying Value Wotes | Quotedpricesin | Significant significant
artive markets obeervable unobservable
[Lewel 1) inpists inputs
 lieveld)
Financlal assets
Amortised cost.
(. ™ 1,115,203,342 s €1,115,208,342
cither financial ssets (eacept derhatives) | 562334796 & .
Trade receivables [ 2,709.848,611 7
Cash and cash equivalents N 254,397,619 8 2
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents < 112,734,189 ]
Irvestment in Gavermment securities. (@.nm 4 ‘\/mm .
Fair Valus through profit or loss ;
isstment ir aquity matrsments of others ¢ 1100000 A £ 1100000
funguated) (
irreestment in Ventare Cagital Fund junquoted) fi:;.man 4 = 49,438,347 %
investment in eguity instruments [guoted] & 4,837,165 [ ] N 4,827,265 2 -
Investment in mutual funds ¢ M A02,322 4 04400322 | -
Drivative Wstrsments 137,652,941 & 137,652,941
f 3 -
Total Financial assets Tia _\ 308229,587 | C_277,191288 ||, 1,116,305,342 |
Fimancial Liabilities
Amortised cost
R ¢
Mon-cuffent 1,347,132,045 13 1,347,122,045
Current % 2,089,575 800 13 -
Trade payables I, 1,080,327.347 16
Other financial labiities ¢ 674,290,706 17
Eair Value through profit or loss
Derivative nstruments ( 196,407,185 17 < 196,407,185
[Totsd Flnancial Uabibities {5387,723,593 * 196,407,185 | 1,347,122,045 |
There have been no transfers among Livel 1, Leved 2 and Level 1 during the period.
The cameying vahse and Mwmﬁwwmhummﬁm:hqm disclosures of fair valise measurement hierarchy as at
Agril 1, 2015 is as follows:
Particulars. Carrying Value Notes Cuoted prices in Significart Significant
active markets observable unobservabbe
(Lo 1) Imparts Imputs
E feyed2l | (leweld]
Financial assets
Amartised cost
Loans ¢ L057,731.980 5 . - | ¢rmsz 731980
Othes financial assets [pacent deriatives| 499,035,518 & : i ;
Trade recehvaldbe 1.152,491,357 7
Cash and cash eguivalents ~146,111,689 8
Pk balances other than cash and cash equivalents 223,832.999 ]
westment in Government secirities (10.000 4 ff 40,000
Fair Value through profit or loss :
Inwastrsent in aquity instruments of others -~ 3,600,000 4 - 3,600,000
[usgunied) 2
investmen in Venture Capital Fund (unguated) 45,028,972 4 - | ¢ asiomar:
Inestment in eguity instruments (quoted) € 2,266,927 s < 2366927 2
Irrvestraent in mutuasl funds 131,127 AS5 L}
Darivative instruments < 1BLITT.045 & € 181,277,145
Q- _— -
Total F 4,632,532,043 - 2286817 | 226,346,117 |7 1,061,351,980
]
Financial Liabilities
Amortised cost
Bormovwings s =
Non-curment 1,558,044, 130 13 { 1,558,044, 150
Cusrent 1,711,978.114 13 .
Trade pavables 522,244 1B
Other financisl iabilities 500,953,597 7
Failr Walue through profit or loss
Dierhathve Instrisments 2,326,767 17 02,336,767
P =
[ 4750823851 202,326,767 |

There have been no tramsiers amang, Level 1, Level 2 and Levil 3 during the period.
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{All amounts in Rupses, unles
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The Group's financial assets includes loans, trade receivables,

borrewings, trade and ather payables, and financial guarantee
and takes precautionary and mitigation maasures in resped of

Thve Group Is exposed 1o market risk, eradit rink and liquidity risk,
exerchis independent contral over
taams. It is the Group's policy that no

the entire process of financial
trading in derhatives for speculalive purposes

cash and cash equ

| statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
othenwise stated)

various dentified risks.

The lallowing table mentions the risk the Group is exposed to and how i@ manages it

ivabants that comes directly from its operations
cortracts. it has an integrated financial risk management system

The Group's SEHION MANGGEMENT ouRriees the man
risks, All the derivative activities for risk management pur
mmay be undertaken.

and financisl liabilities comprisas of
which proactively identifies monitors

agemant of these risks, which evaluates and
poses are managed by ewperienced

- Risk Exposure arising from | Measurement M nt
Bormowings ~ |interest Rat
Market Risk- Interest rate risk - sensitivity Analysis e al
Term Deposits Swaps
Cash Flow Analbysis
Recognized financial mssets rp—
Market Risk-Foreign Bxchange and Babdlities not Sonsitvity fm”: d' R
denominated in (N
Irvestenent in Equity ol
Market Risk- Equity price risk sacurities mutual funds and |Sensithvity Analysis |
Dicersification
vanture capital fund
Cash and Cash equivalents,
Credit Risk loans given, trade
recetables and imastmants
: : Borrowing, trade payables
Liuidny fisk and other financial Habilties
Market Risk

sarkat Rk i the risk that the future value of 3 financial irstrument will fluctuate due to moves ins the market factors. The most esmmaon types of markt risks
inchude

- interest rate risk,

- freign currency risk and

- ity price risk

Wiarket risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial Instruments. The finance department undartakes management af cash resources, hedging strateghes
fior forsign currency expasures, Bormowing mechanism and ensuring compliance with market risk limits.

interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that thi futwre cash flows or the fair value of a financial mstrument will fluctuate because of changes in market intesest rates, The Group
manages its interest rate risk by hatancing the proporton of fiwed rate and floating rate financial {restruments in its total portfiolio. The Group Is not very significantly
paposed Lo Interest rate risks except the variations in LIBOR rates as most of borrowings are linked ta LIBOR.

0.5% changes in intercst rate will incroase) decrease the borrowing cost by Rs 1.22 :mre"’

The Groug's investment in bank deposits are with fixed rate of interest with fixed maturity ansd hence not significantly exposed to Interest rate sensitivity.

Forelgn Currency ik

Faraign Currency risk & the risk that the future eamings or fair values of future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group
operates globally and partion af the busiress & transacted in USD and Euro. The Group evaluates exchange rate expotura and manages it by using derivatives like
Fareign-exchange forward contracts and call spread to hedge the foreign exchangn risk.

Derivative instrunvents and unhedged foreign currancy Expesuris

llmﬂ-ﬂuuumuﬂuunhmlﬂum {

L 4
The Group has bormowings in foreign curmeny amaunting to Rs. 4,286,109,300 (March 31, 2016: s, 3,471,177,923). Accordingly, in order to hedge the foreign
currency risk on these barrowings, the Group has taken foreign exchange forward contracts, which are as follows:

Mame of the instrument Currenty Maarch 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Farward contract 1o by UsD (2.95,12.73!1 ll/J1,'93."..'vIZI..'I:I|:IIZr




Solar industries India Limited

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the

(Al amounts in Rupees, unless atherwise stated)

hpurlndpdfmlpmmnquwmu:ﬁ-nmdm:

year endad March 31, 2017

In forelgn currency
Mareh 31, 2017 March 31, 2006
usD. EURD usD EURD
Trade Receivable 4 1,58,25 666 C oM7L & 13912559 ¢ 237462 |
Loans and gther recetvable ~47,53,104 -] € 3.71976 :
|Borrowings " 2,36,56,409 ¢ 7075487
Trade Payables ¢ 17.50,007 {P‘ 1,11,00,551

18 increase or decraase in foreign exchange rates will have t

e following impact on profit before tax:

Ini Rup@es
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
usD " [69,56,355) % [1%,48,565)
EURCH ¢ 378,253 o 1,77,669
Equity price sk

The Group's iwestments in quoted equity shares
securities. The Group manages the equity price ris

of directors reviews and approves all investments,

and mutual funds are subject to market price risk arising from uneertainties about future values of the invested
k through diversification, The portfolio reparts are submitted to senior management on regular hasts and the board

Following are the details of inestments which are subject to price risk:

Imvestment in equity shares {quoted)
Inwvestment in mutual funds

“s 5550303
49,26,92,594

March 31, 2017

s

48,327,265
30,44,02,323
b

L4

The impact of increases/ decreases of the BSE/ NSE index on the Group's equity shares and mutual funds and gain/ boss for the period would be Rs. 4,982,909 (March

31, 2016 Re. 3,092,296). The analysis is hased on the assumpton that the index has increased by 1% or decreased by 1% with all other variables hald constant, and
4

that all the Group's investments having price risk moved in Ji

Cradit risk

Cradit risk ares from the possibiity that the counter party

financlal refiability of customers and other counter parties, taking into

and ageing of financial assets. Indevidual risk fimits are parkodically

e with thi index. &

may not be able ta settle their obligation agreed, To manage this, the Group perkodically assesses

sccount the financial condition, current econamic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts

reviewed on the basis of such informathon.

Financial assets are written off when there & no reasonable sxpectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group. ‘Where
|oans or receivables have been writlen off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity 1o attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are
e, these s1e recogiised as mcom in the statement of profit and kss.

Cagh and cash equivalents and deposits; Balances and deposits with banks are subject to low credit risks due to good credit ratings assigned 1o the barks.

Inestments: The Groug limits s exposura o credit risk by generally investing in liguid securities and countarparties that have a good credit ratings. The group does

ot expect any credit losses (rom non-periarmance

SIRCTOCS,

Loans: The Group has gven loans 1o associates and certain unrelated
arbitration proceeding are on-going and the management believes tha

Trade and other receivalbles:

by these counter parties, and doe not have any significant concentration of exporsiures ta specific industry

parties. However there s no counter party risk. Except in case of some non-current leans whare
1 this amount woubd be recoverad in full Teowewer the timing of recovery is uncenain,

The ageing anakysis of the receivables (gross of provisions) has been considered from the date the imosce Talls due:

Pariod Upto 60 days Sri oy | Tedanii ek

s _ﬂ!ﬂ' [
A5 at March 31,2017 U 1794452161 | | 54,48,49,794 37 88,750 | 3,48,20,90,215
As at March 31, 2016 1537301476 | | 64,6998050|( €1,13,49,313 2,9 56,48 939 |

The following table summarizes the chai

nges in tlve Provisions made for the receivabbes:

“March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Dpening balance (_28,58,00,249 { 20,28,55,805
Provided dusing the year ¥ 7.82,89995 b §.87,61,982
Amamints written off S (77,51,506) L jea,17,454)
Rewversals of provisions v[1,18,71,162) .
ES ! 5

|Closing balance | | 34,4467,5715 58

N significant changes In estimation techniques o assumptions were maide during the reporting period,
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Lbguibdity risk

Ligpusdity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to setthe or mest its obl
responsibie for Bauidity, funding as well as settlement management and then

forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

Maturity profile of financial Habilities

igations on time or at ar
processes related to such

The table helow provides detatls ragarding U remaining contractual maturiies of financkal liabilities 21 the reporting date

casonable price, The Group's finance department is
risks are owerseen by senior management through rlbing

Ondemand |
March 31, 2017
Borrowings _
From related party i 21,83,65881
Fram Banks < 26,71,65,225
From Cihers (i.zs,rz.m
Sabes Tax Deferral Loan -
Trade payables -~ -
Other financkal liabilities (76,6533
Drerivative Instruments 5
March 31, 2016
Borrowings 7
From related party Y 20,78,51,873
From Banks ©30,10,00,006
From Others & 1,68,96925
Galies Tax Deferral Loan .
Trade payables ;
(het financial Habilities {' 13,76,578
Derivative Instrurments -

Lass than 3 manths

¢ T0,23,42,580

{ #7,18,22,473
| 50669150
o BO0,66,560

JOAL53,13,527

L 2,580,990

©, 1,06,09,83,235
6,29, 65,044

L 843,427

3 to 12 months

110 5 years

» 5 years Total

| 2,41,01,60,551

« 5,711,166
 5,53,86,400 -
3,50,43,427 -
('- 1,88,5097% | ¢ 53974336

¢ 19344112
3,68,22,988 -
*¢L56,53,112 | ¢1 1,99,10,646

<

1,47,33,92,867

% 50,38,608

- 1,82,06,15,183 11 34,002 98,505

¢ 4896504

{55155

L

21,83,65,881
5| 4,84,80,61,217
0 1,25,72,084

O o61,61,312
% 92,72,08873
1 9,56,99,653

33-,11.?36
. { 8,08,91,895

- | _20.78,51,873
- ¢ BT ILIB0E
1,68,96,925

{ 1264800 | 6421303

11,08,03,27,347

.10,37,389 | ¢ 10,22,04.99%

¢ 19,64,07,185
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Note 33: Capital Management

For the purpose of Group's capital management,
ather equity reserves. The primary objective of cap
consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage

aconomic conditions and risk ma nagements of the underlying assets.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratic,

capital includes issued share capital, share premium and all
ital management is to maximise shareholder value, The Group
the capital structure in light of changes in

which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
net debt 3.71,83,72,287 < 3,06,9565,968 2.91,00,87,555
Equity { 97285864168 | 8,05,44,41,170 | © 7,35,60,01,707
Capital and net debt 13,00,42,36,455 11,12,40,07,138 | mizﬁiﬁniag!zaz
Gearing ratio 29% 28% 28%

4 Ny
calculation of net debt is as follows:
mMarch 31, 2017 mMarch 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
Borrowings
Mon Current 1,47,95,59,783 134,71,22,085 | * 1,5580,44,130
Current Y 963,27,00,750 2,08,95,75,830 1,72,19,78,114

Tk

< a,11,22,69,533

¢ 3,83,66,97,875

T 3.28,00,22,244 |

Cash and cash equivalents L 25,83,33470 \ 25,43,97619 « 14,61,11,689
Bank balances other than cash and cash ¢ 13,4563.776 [ 11,27,34,289 22,38,22,999
equivalents

~ 39,38,97,246 . 36,71,31,908  36,99,34,688
Net Debt 3.71,83,72,287 | - 3,06,95,65,968 | 2,91,00,87,555
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a1

Ald

Al.2

Al3

A2

ALl

A22

Note 34: First- time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2017, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For
periods upto and induding the year ended March 31, 2015, the Group preparad its financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards notifled under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules,
2014 (indian GAAP)

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements wihich comply with ind AS applicable for periads ending on March 31,
2017, tegether with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016, as described in the summary of
significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Company's opaning balance sheat was prepared as at April
1, 2015, the Company’s date of transition to Ind A5, This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its
indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 and the financal statements as at and for the year
ended March 31. 2016

Exemptions and ptions applied

Ind A5 101 aliows first- time adepters certain sxemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The
Company has applied the following exemptions:

Ind AS opticnal exemptions
Business Combinations (Ind AS 103)

ind AS 101 provides the eption to apply incl AS 103, prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the transition
date. This provides refief from full retrospective application that would require restatement of all business combinations priar to the
transition date.

The Company elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations cceurring after its transition date. Business
combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been restated, The Company has applied same exemption for investment
in associates.

Deemed cost

Ind A5 101 permits a first-time adopter 1o elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as
racognisad In the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind A3, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning Habilities.

accardingly, the Company has alpcted to measure all of its property, plant and eguipment at their pervious GAAP carrying value.

Use of deemed cost for Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to slect to continue the previous GAAP carrying amount at the date of transition and use that
as its deemed cost of investment as at the date of transition.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all its imestments in subsidiaries and associates at their previous GAAP carrying
value,

ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs as at the date of transition to ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the
sarme date in accordance with previous GAAP |after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting paolicies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimates were i error.

ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in confarmity with previous GAAP. The
Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under
Indian GAAF:

|rvestment in equity instruments carried at FVPL or FVOLOI; and

Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

Reconciliations batwaen previous GAAP and Ind AS
The following reconciliations provide a quantification af the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from Previous
GAAF to Ind AS In accordance with Ind AS 101:
— equity as at April 1, 2015;

— equity as at March 31, 201%;

~ total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016; and
— explanation of material adjustments ta cash flow statements

I the reconcillations mentioned above, cortain reclassifications have been made to Previous GAAP financial information to alig

e ind A% nrecentatinn
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Motes March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015 |
Total Other equity as per Indian GAAP “gA9,47,18,347 | 7.57,78,49,004
: & G
Fair valuation of mutual fund and equity investments 1 22,27 85,634 3,59, 44,860
Faif valuation of derivatives 2 31245757 “42,10,49,672)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables 3 ¢ (14,29,98,554) 114,42,85,967)
Proposed dividend and related taxes 4 . ( 19,60,41,064
Prenperative expenses written off 5 Y527 sooed) {15,27,50,064)
Deconsolidation of subsidiary and related foresgn CUTTEnLY & [11,83,84,146) ¢ (163 7,28,670)
translations (
Reclasiiication of Goodwill from capital reserve ( 12,62,00,045 15,62,12,875
Capital reserve created on acquisition . 6,04,149 -
Others with respect to forelgn currency translation on account of 24785210
tnd AS adjustments r
Tax effects of adjustments 7 © (41,27,45314) (30,92, 1L927)
[Total adjustments _ T (e2,12,57,282)] " (80.2821,446))
Total Other as per Ind AS {1 5] 7

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018

Motes 2016
Profit after tax as per indian GAAF 1,66,13.89,143
Adjustrvents:
Fair valuation of mutual fund and equity imestments 1 # [1.31.55,??15}]
Fair valuation of derlvatives Fl ¢ 5,22,9537
Prowision for expected credit losses on trade receiakbes 3 « 1287413
Goodwill written off in 1GAM now reversed since sulsidiary ] « 3,82,57,695
deconsolidated
Tax effects of adjustments 7
[Total adjustments_

Profit aftar tax as per Ind AS

HNotes to first-time adoption:
Mote 1 Fliﬂhtﬁmﬂnﬁﬂlhﬂindmhhwm

Unsder Ind AS, imvestments in ecuity instruments [other than invesiments in subsidiaries) and mutual funds are roquired to be measured at fair walue,
The resulting fair value changes of these investmants have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transitlon and subsequenthy in the
profit or kess for the year ended March 31, 2016,

MNote 2 Fair valuation of derivatives

Under Ind AS, derivathies which are not designated as hedging instruments are fair valuad with resulting changes being recognised in profit or loss.
The impact in equity and profit is on account of fair waluation of forward foreign exchange contracts,




Note 4

Note 5

MNote &

Note 7

Trade recaivables

As per Ind AS 109, the Company is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts, Consequently, the
total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 decreased and profit for the year ended March 31, 2016 has also been decreased

Proposed dividend
Under Ind A%, dividends are recognised when the same & approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. Accordingly, the liabllity for proposed

dividend Incheded under provisions his been reversed with cormesponding adjustment to retained earnings. Consequently, the total equity has been
Increased.

Prieoperative axpenses

Preoperative supenses capitalised as per indian GAAP have been writben off to retained earnings since they are specifically excluded from
capdtalisation as per Ind A5,

Deconsolidation of subsidiary

As per Ind AS 110, consolidation is based an control moded. Accordingly if parent loses control of a subsidiary, the parent derecognises the assets and
liabifities of the former subsidiary from the consolidated balance sheet. Hence, the Company has deconsolidated one of the step down subsidiary 2.
PATSAN Patlayici Maddeler Sanayi Ve Ticaret Anontm Sirket since the same is under liguidation process,

Daferred tax

indian GAAP requires deferred tax sccounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entitles to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying ameunt of an asset or llability in the balance sheet and ts tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach

has resulted in recognition of deferred tx on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

Also, deferred tax have been recognised on the adjustments made on transition to Ind AS.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standatone financial statements
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